KBUD 2017 Budget Execution Manual



Office of State Budget Director Governor's Office for Policy and Management Room 284, Capitol Annex Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 Phone: 502-564-7300 Fax: 502-564-6684 <u>http://www.osbd.ky.gov</u> <u>http://kbud.ky.gov</u>





Table of Contents

Section 1: Introduction to KBUD1
KBUD Overview1
Basic Navigation2
KBUD Home Page7
Section 2: Operating Budget Execution Process Overview
Budget Execution Process Overview9
Section 3: Budget Request Forms (General Information)11
Budget Request Form Stages 11
Codes Used on Budget Request Forms11
Accessing and Creating a Budget Request Form 17
Section 4: Original Allotment Requests & Modification Requests 25
Original Allotment Requests
Appropriation and Allotment Modification Requests
Section 5: KBUD Queries
How to Access and Run a KBUD Query41
How to Export the KBUD Query Results to Excel
How to Email a KBUD Query Link to another KBUD User
How to Print a KBUD Query
Section 6: Reports (EBI)
How to Access a Report
How to Run a Report51
How to Create and Print a PDF Document from the Report
How to Export the Report to Excel55
How to Close a Report and Exit the Report Application



57
61
71
•

Attachments

Attachment 1: KBUD Setup and Preferences	.A-1
KBUD Setup	A-1
Internet Browser Requirements	A-1
Pop-Up Blocker	A-3
Internet Explorer Security Setting to Enable Menu Display	A-4
Login	A-5
Password Criteria	A-6
Change Password	A-6
Preferences	A-9



Section 1: Introduction to KBUD

KBUD Overview

The Kentucky Budgeting (KBUD) system is used in conjunction with electronic Management Administrative and Reporting System (eMARS) to automate the budget execution process by allowing agencies to use KBUD to create specific budget year quarterly allocations based on the enacted appropriation levels. These allocations are then reviewed and approved by the Office of the State Budget Director (OSBD)/Governor's Office for Policy and Management (GOPM). Once approved, GOPM will load these quarterly allocations into eMARS, so agencies can then expend the necessary resources in order to meet the requirements of their state and/or federal mandates.

This manual was developed specifically to provide helpful information concerning the KBUD system and how to use it to enter the original fiscal year Allotments along with how to submit modifications to Appropriations, Allotments, and Quarterly Revenue data as necessary throughout the fiscal year. The primary tools within KBUD to accomplish the budget execution process are the budget request forms, queries, and reports.

Budget Request Forms

KBUD uses budget request forms as the primary tools for entering information into the system. Budget request forms are templates that users access from the list of forms available to agencies. Users choose the appropriate budget form request template then create a specific instance of the template to submit the request. Each budget request form is designed for a specific purpose, such as entering original allotment requests or entering requests for modifications to the original allotments and/or appropriations.

Queries

KBUD queries are used to display the information entered through budget request forms in a data table format similar to a spreadsheet program. Users are able to access information from either one budget request form or multiple budget request forms. The information contained in these queries can be exported into a spreadsheet or database program for further analysis.

Reports

KBUD reports are standardized reports used to display the information that was entered through the budget request forms. These reports are required for budget management purposes and are used in communication between an agency and their assigned OSBD policy and budget analyst.



Basic Navigation

The following are important KBUD navigation rules that users should be aware of:

- **Never** use the "Back" or "Refresh" buttons on your web browser. Use of these buttons may cause you to lose any unsaved work and/or lock forms so they cannot be modified.
- Always click the form's Save button before exiting a form to save your changes.
- Always click the form's Back button to exit a form after you have saved your changes.
- Always logout of KBUD using the Logout link at the top of the Home Page.

Welcome, RVJ0040 Messages(0) [Home ^也 | Help | Preferences | Reports | Edit Password | Logout

If you accidentally select the Web browsers "Back" button the following screen will be displayed:



Select the <Stay on this page> link, and you will be returned to KBUD. Selecting the <Leave this page> link will cause KBUD to give you the Webpage has expired error, and you will lose any unsaved work. From this point, you will need to reopen your browser to log back into the KBUD to continue working.





If you accidentally select the "Refresh" button on your web browser, the following screen will be displayed. You should select <Stay on this page>.



Selecting <Leave this page> will display the following screen:

Windows Ir	nternet Explorer	23
1	To display the webpage again, the web browser needs to resend the information you've previously submitted. If you were making a purchase, you should click Cancel to avoid a duplicate transaction. Otherwise, click Retry to displa the webpage again.	y
	Retry Cano	:el

Select the <Retry> button. This will give you the following error, but you should be able to continue to work from this point. However, it may be necessary for you to logout of KBUD and log back in to continue to work.

		Either the Back, Stop, or Refresh button on your browser has been pressed, or a System transaction timeout has been exceeded. Please use the application navigational controls to restart your previous operation.
--	--	---

If you select the <Cancel> button, you will receive the following error. From this point, you will need to reopen your browser to log back into KBUD.



Webpag	e has expired ×
	t View Favorites Tools Help D 👻 🚍 🖛 🕶 Page 🕶 Safety 🕶 Tools 🕶 🔞 💌 👧
i	Webpage has expired
	Most likely cause: • The local copy of this webpage is out of date, and the website requires that you download it again
	Something to try:
	 Click on the Refresh button on the toolbar to reload the page. After refreshing, you might need to navigate to the specific webpage again, or re-enter information.
	More information

The KBUD Home Page is the best starting point to use for navigating throughout the application.

Reference Data 🔻 Security 🔻	Utilities 🔻 Budget Tasks 🔻
Advantage Performance Budgeting -	Training > Budget Tasks
3	Password changed successfully.
Budget Tasks	
	Categories
	Dimensions - This contains links to the Dimensions the users can edit.
	Pages
	Formulate Budget Request
	Execute Query
	Refresh Cache Page
Go to top of page	

The Navigation bar, located in the upper right hand corner of the application, is visible throughout the KBUD application except when working within a budget request form.

Welcome, RVJ0040 🛛 Messages(0) [Home 🖻 | Help | Preferences | Reports | Edit Password | Logout



<u>Messages:</u> This allows users access to the KBUD broadcasted messages. Some messages will be displayed upon login. All messages that pertain to a user can be accessed from the Messages link.

Home: This allows the user to return to the homepage screen.

<u>Help:</u> This allows the user to access online help for using the application (*NOTE: This is generic help information and is not Kentucky specific*).

Preferences: This allows the user to set preferences when working in KBUD.

<u>Reports</u>: This allows the user to open a new browser window to access the KBUD and eMARS reporting application called EBI (Enterprise Business Intelligence).

Edit Password: This allows the user to change their password.

Logout: This allows the user to logout of the application.

From the KBUD Home Page and throughout the application, there are several options for navigating to different KBUD tools:

- One option is to use the Category toolbar which is located on the left hand side of the screen below the CGI Advantage KBUD banner. The upper row contains links to submenus, one for each major function within KBUD. The lower row is a "breadcrumb trail" which is used to move back to previous menus.
- A second navigation option is to use the KBUD main menu. The KBUD main menu provides access to all the tasks listed within the Budget Tasks.

CGI Advantage	KBUD	Welcome, RVJ0040	Messages(0) [Home [[]	🖹 Help Preferences	Reports Edit Passwor	rd
Reference Data 🔻	Security 🔻 Utilities 🔻	Budget Tasks 🔻				
Advantage Performa	nce Budgeting - Training :	 Budget Tasks 				
٩	Password changed suc	ccessfully.				
Budget Tasks						
	Categories					
	Dimensions - This c	ontains links to the D	imensions the users can e	dit.		
	Pages					
	Formulate Budget Re	quest		s Main Menu		
	Execute Query					
	Refresh Cache Page					



• A third option for navigating is to use KBUD's sub-menus. For example, the Budget Tasks sub-menu contains links to the same functions that are on the Main Menu page.

Reference Data 👻 S	Security 🔻 Utilities 🔻	Budget Tasks 🔻	
Advantage Performanc	e Budgeting - Training >	Dimensions	A
()	Password changed succ	Formulate Budget Request Execute Query	Ð
		Refresh Cache Page	
Budget Tasks			
	Categories Dimensions - This contains links to the Dimensions the users can edit.		
	Pages		
	Formulate Budget Requ	quest	- 11
	Execute Query		
Refresh Cache Page			
			- 11
Go to top of page			



KBUD Home Page

The Home Page of the KBUD system has been designed to reflect the key parts of the Commonwealth's budget process.

Dimensions

Dimensions are information tables that contain descriptive and other information about Restricted Funds, Off-Budget Funds, ABRs, Grants, and Projects (Capital Projects). Data contained within the Dimension tables is used in conjunction with the data from budget request forms to supply all the information necessary for KBUD Reports.

Formulate Budget Request (Budget Request Forms)

KBUD users create Budget Request Forms to enter their budget data, such as allocations, into the system. Budget Request Forms are accessed from a list of budget layouts (templates). Users will select the appropriate budget layout (template) and create a specific instance of the budget request form. Each instance of the form will contain tabs used to enter the various components of budget data that make up the entire budget request.

Execute a Query

Formatted System Queries (Queries) display information from KBUD in a table format similar to a spreadsheet. However, since data in KBUD resides in a relational database, Queries can be used to display information at different levels of detail and from multiple budget requests if required. Information contained in Queries can be exported to Microsoft Excel for further analysis.

Refresh Cache Page

One of the most important features for users is the Refresh Cache Page. The Refresh Cache Page will allow a user to refresh their current KBUD session, so the user can see any newly created data without having to log out and then back in. For example, if you needed a new allotment code, the KBUD Administrators would add the new allotment code to the database tables, and the user would need to refresh their cache before being able to see the new code in their current session. The Refresh Cache Page option is available on the Main Menu and also from the Budget Tasks dropdown.

Reference Data 🔻 🚦	Security 🔻 Utilities 🔻 Budget Tasks 🔻		
Advantage Performanc	e Budgeting - Training > Budget Tasks		
Budget Tasks			
	Categories		
	Dimensions - This contains links to the Dimensions the users can edit.		
	Pages		
	Formulate Budget Request		
	Execute Query		
	Refresh Cache Page		



Once you have selected the Refresh Cache Page, you will need to select the <Refresh Own Cache> button displayed on the next screen to complete the refresh.

Reference Data 👻 Sec	curity 👻 Utilities 👻	▼ Budget Tasks ▼
Advantage Performance E	Budgeting - Training) > Budget Tasks > Refresh Cache Page 😒
Refresh Cache	Page	
<u>R</u> efresh Own Cache		



Section 2: Operating Budget Execution Process Overview

Budget Execution Process Overview

The Budget Execution process involves processing the fiscal year's original enacted appropriations and allotments. As the fiscal year progresses, the budget execution process may also include appropriation modification requests, allotment modification requests, and Quarterly Restricted/Federal fund revisions. Some typical examples of modifications are an agency may receive additional restricted or federal funds and must request an increase in spending authority prior to obligating the funds, and/or general fund allotments may need to be adjusted among budget units or fiscal quarters or budget objects such as personnel costs and operating expenses.

Enacted Appropriations

- Enacted appropriations are entered in KBUD by the Governor's Office for Policy and Management (GOPM) from the enacted appropriations bills, as revised.
- GOPM then transfers the information from KBUD to eMARS where it is used for budget control purposes.

Original Allotment Requests

- Original allotment requests are entered in KBUD by the agencies.
- Agencies will then notify their GOPM budget analyst, usually via email, once the allotment requests are ready for review.
- GOPM then reviews, modifies (if applicable), and approves the allotments. If there are questions prior to approval, the GOPM budget analyst will contact the agency.
- GOPM then transfers the information from KBUD to eMARS where it is used for budget control purposes.

Allotment Modification Requests

To effect a change in how appropriations are allotted among the various budget units, an agency must submit a formal allotment modification request. The Allotment Modification Request process varies slightly depending upon the type of modification. The two types of allotment modifications are requests that <u>do not</u> impact an appropriation or requests that <u>do</u> impact an appropriation.

The process for an allotment modification request that **<u>does not</u>** impact an appropriation will have a "net zero" impact on the appropriation.

To better explain this type of request, consider this example. Let's assume an agency's first quarter expenditure activity will exceed the current quarterly allotment amount. The agency can request a modification to move a portion of one of the other quarter's allotment amount to the first quarter. This would not change their overall annual allotment and would have a "net zero" impact on your appropriation.

The following describes the process for an allotment modification:



- An modification request is entered in KBUD by the agency.
- Agency submits written request to GOPM when it is ready for review. The request should include the program code, fund and the request code from the KBUD modification form along with the allotment modification report.
- GOPM then reviews, modifies (if applicable), and approves the modification request. If there are questions prior to approval, the GOPM budget analyst will contact the agency.
- GOPM then transfers the information from KBUD to eMARS.

Appropriation Modification Requests

To help better explain this type of request, consider this example. Let's assume an agency received a grant that was not reflected in the original appropriations bill. The agency would need to request an increase in their appropriation. The agency should also complete an allotment and a Quarterly Revenue Revision form if it is a Restricted or Federal Fund modification. The following describes the process for completing an appropriation modification request:

- Modification requests are entered in KBUD by the agencies and submitted to GOPM, and GOPM submits a hard copy to the Legislative Research Commission (LRC).
- Agency submits a formal written request to GOPM, which includes the program code, fund and the request code from the KBUD modification form. Guidelines regarding information to be included in the written request can be found in the enacted budget bill, Part III.
- GOPM then reviews, modifies (if applicable), and approves the modification request. If there are questions prior to approval, the GOPM budget analyst will contact the agency.
- The LRC reviews the modification request.
- If the request is approved, GOPM then transfers the information from KBUD to eMARS.
- Appropriation modifications along with Quarterly Revenue Revision information is transmitted by GOPM to the LRC on a quarterly schedule. Therefore, agencies are required to submit appropriation modification requests to GOPM based on the following schedule.
 - Requests for 1st Quarter modifications are due to GOPM by June 15.
 - Requests for 2nd Quarter modifications are due to GOPM by September 15.
 - Requests for 3rd Quarter modifications are due to GOPM by December 15.
 - Requests for 4th Quarter modifications are due to GOPM by March 15.



Section 3: Budget Request Forms (General Information)

The budget request forms are the primary tools used for inputting budget information into the system, which in turn is used to produce the KBUD queries and reports. This section includes the information about the form stages, codes used on the forms, and the steps required to access and create a budget request form.

Budget Request Form Stages

Stages are used to move budget request forms through the different levels of the budget execution process. The number of stages and how they progress will vary depending upon the type of budget request form used.

When a budget request form is ready to move from Stage 1 to the next stage, notification must be sent by the agency responsible for creating the form to the appropriate GOPM budget analyst. GOPM will then move the form to the next stage. **NOTE: Agencies should not move forms to the next stage. Moving forms to the next stage is solely the responsibility of GOPM.**

In the budget execution process, once a budget request form has been moved to the next stage, the agency will no longer be able to access or view the form. Therefore, a search for that specific form will bring up 0 results.

Codes Used on Budget Request Forms

There are various types of codes used on the Budget Request Forms for Budget Execution. Below are three types of the most common and important codes to understand:

- o Program Codes
- Budget Object Codes
- AA Object (Event Type) Codes

Program Codes

The most important field in KBUD is the Program code. The code's main purpose is appropriating and allotting designated budget amounts to specific agency programs. The codes are organized in hierarchal consolidation or "roll-ups" in order to report information at various program levels. The program code is also used to determine each user's security access.

The Commonwealth will use 6 levels of Program codes for Budget Execution (see KBUD Program Code table below). Think of each level as a step on a staircase. Each level reports to the next higher level in the hierarchy. It is important to understand that program levels 1-4



are used for reporting only, and program levels 5-6 are used for creating KBUD budget request forms.

How the Program Codes are used in KBUD and eMARS

For budget execution, the level 5 and 6 program codes are used for every new budget request form created in KBUD. Understanding the program code's hierarchies, or consolidation levels, is very important for effective use of filling out budget request forms and running KBUD queries and reports.

Agencies will enter allotment amounts at level 6, but the information will "roll-up" or consolidate to all the higher levels in order to report it at these various levels. So if an user wanted to view allotment information for a specific Cabinet (Level 3), then the user will choose the program code for the cabinet when running a cabinet-level report or query. Also once the appropriations (level 5) and allotments (level 6) are finalized for the fiscal year, the amounts are transferred from KBUD to eMARS. Appropriations amounts are loaded against the Function Groups in eMARS, and allotments amounts are loaded against Function Types in eMARS. Allotment amounts transferred into eMARS are used to control spending within a specified fiscal quarter and to control spending by object type (such as Personnel Costs or Operating Expenses) for the General Fund.

KBUD PROGRAM CODE CONSOLIDATION (ROLL-UP)

Program Level	Name		
1	Commonwealth of Kentucky		
2	Branch of Government		
3	Cabinet		
4	Combined Appropriations		
5	Appropriations (Function Group in eMARS)		
6	Allotments (Function Type in eMARS)		

BUDGET EXECUTION



Example Program Consolidation (Hierarchy):

Tourism, Arts and Heritage

Parks

Level	Level Description	Program Code	Description
1	Commonwealth	STATE	Commonwealth of Kentucky
2	Branch of Government	EXEC	Executive Branch
3	Cabinet	50	Tourism, Arts and Heritage
4	Combined Appropriations	50_CMAP	Tourism, Arts and Heritage
5	Appropriation Program Entry	670K	Parks
6	Allotment Program Entry	670A	General Admin and Support
6	Allotment Program Entry	670B	Resort Parks
6	Allotment Program Entry	670C	Recreation Parks & Historic Sites
6	Allotment Program Entry	670D	Cafeterias

Allotment Program

An allotment program (Level 6) is a subset of an appropriation program (Level 5). It is used for distributing or allotting the appropriation amounts to various programs by each fund type. There are often more than one allotment program for an associated appropriation. In the example, the appropriation program for Parks (670K) is divided into four allotment programs:

- 670K Parks (APPROPRIATION LEVEL 6)
- 670A General Administration and Support (Allotment LEVEL 6)
- 670B Resort Parks (Allotment LEVEL 6)
- 670C Recreation Parks and Historic Sites (Allotment LEVEL 6)
- 670D Cafeterias (Allotment LEVEL 6)

These allotment program codes are referred to as function types in eMARS. The SAS-14 Account Modification Form is used to establish, change, or delete a function type in eMARS. The SAS-14 is designed to be used with both KBUD and eMARS chart of account elements. This will ensure that the program codes/function types are the same in both systems. The SAS-14 form is available on the eMARS website at the link below:

http://finance.kv.gov/services/statewideacct/Pages/eMARSForms.aspx.



Budget Object Codes

Budget object codes are used for the purpose of classifying, controlling, and reporting expenditures. For budget execution, all funds will use "Quarter" as the budget object in the KBUD form. Each allotment program's total FY dollar amounts are required to be allotted by quarterly time periods to help ensure consistent and level spending across the entire fiscal year.

Quarterly Allotment Periods

1st Quarter (July-Aug-Sept) 2nd Quarter (Oct-Nov-Dec) 3rd Quarter (Jan-Feb-Mar) 4th Quarter (Apr-May-June)

However general funds will also use additional budget object codes to further classify how the budget is used and controlled. These budget objects apply to general fund allotments only, and therefore, do not apply to Federal, Restricted, Tobacco, or Road Funds.

Budget Object Codes (General Fund Only)

Object Type 1	Personnel Costs
Object Type 3	Operating Expenses
Object Type 4	Grants, Loans, Benefits
Object Type 5	Debt Service
Object Type 6	Capital Outlay

An Example Budget Request Form used for General Funds

🕞 Budget Request Summary 👔 ———————————————————————————————————							
La	yout C	ode: 16_AL_ORIG	INAL Type	Generic 🔽	Request Code:	1412	
					Fund:	0100	
					Program:	728S	
Display Sub Total: Export Audit Trail View Graph Sort View as CSV Summary Image: Colspan="2">Display Sub Total: Line Program AA Object Budget Object 1 Quarter 1							
	1	728A	X001	1	E		
	2	728A	X001	3	Е		
	3	728A	X001	4	E		
	4	728A	X001	QUARTER	E	11,795,200	



Appropriation/Allotment (AA) Object (Event Type) Codes

Allotment transactions are differentiated through the use of Appropriation/Allotment (AA) object codes that indicate whether the allotment was the original or a revision. For example, Regular Budget (AA Object Code X001) represents allotments that are prepared during the regular allotment request process. However, Other Budget Revisions (X010) represent some actions that result from the allotment modification request process. A list of all the AA object codes and their description are shown below. **NOTE: AA Object codes X001 and X011 are the only ones used during the original allotment request process.**

AA Object Code	Description
X001	Regular Budget
X002	Continued Budget
X003	Special Budget
X004	Budget Revision Due to Reorganization
X005	Appropriation from General Fund Surplus
X006	Current Year Budget
X007	Surplus Expenditure Plan
X008	State Salary and Compensation Allocation
X009	Budget Reduction Revision
X010	Other Budget Revision
X011	Tobacco Settlement – Phase I
X012	Unallotted

Appropriation/Allotment (AA) Object Code (Event Type) Table

An Example Budget Request Form used for General Funds

🕞 Budget Request Summary 👔							
La	Layout Code: 16_AL_ORIGINAL Type: Generic V Request Code: 1412						
					Fund:	0100	
					Program:	728S	
Ex	Display Sub Total: <u>Export</u> <u>Audit Trail</u> <u>View Graph</u> <u>Sort</u> <u>View as CSV</u> Summary						
	Line	Program	AA Object	Budget Objec	t 1 Qi	uarter 1	
	1	728A	X001	1	E		
	2	728A	X001	3	E		
	3	728A	X001	4	E		
	4	728A	X001	QUARTER	E	11,795,200	



The intended uses of AA object codes are to track and report original budgets and changes to those budgets by different categories.

Regular Budget (X001)

These are operating budget appropriations and allotments that originate from a Regular Session of the General Assembly and a branch of government appropriations act.

Continued Budget (X002)

These are operating budget appropriations and allotment balances forwarded from the prior fiscal year.

Special Budget (X003)

These are operating budget appropriations and allotments that originate from an appropriation provision in any act of the General Assembly that is not part of the first biennial branch of government appropriations act; and any appropriation provision passed during an Extraordinary Session that is not part of the first biennial branch budget.

Budget Revision Due to Reorganization (X004)

These are operating budget appropriations and allotments that are transferred due to a reorganization/executive order action.

Appropriation from General Fund Surplus (X005)

These are operating budget appropriations and allotments from General Fund Surplus.

Current Year Budget (X006)

These are operating budget appropriations and allotments originating from a Regular Session of the General Assembly and a branch of government appropriations act for the current fiscal year. These occur biennially in the even numbered years.

Surplus Expenditure Plan (X007)

These are operating budget appropriations and allotments that occur based on a Surplus Expenditure Plan.

State Salary and Compensation Allocation (X008)

These are allocations from a centrally pooled Salary and Compensation appropriations.



Budget Reduction Revision (X009)

These are operating budget appropriation and allotment revisions due to an official budget reduction.

• Other Budget Revision (X010)

These are operating budget appropriation and allotment other revisions not addressed by the above codes.

□ Tobacco Settlement – Phase I (X011)

These are operating budget appropriations and allotments that occur based on the Phase I Tobacco Settlement.

Unallotted (X012)

This code is used to unallott budgeted amounts associated with Mandated Expenditure Reductions.

Accessing and Creating a Budget Request Form

Step 1 – To access a list of all the available budget request forms, the user can select "Formulate Budget Request" from either the dropdown menu or a link from the Homepage.

Advantage Performa		s 😴 Budget Tasks 👻	
Horanaye Ferrorine	ance Budgeting - Train	ng > Dimensions	
Budget Tasks		Formulate Budget Request	
	Categories	Refresh Cache Page	
	Dimensions - T	his contains links to the Dimensions the users can edit.	
_	Pages		
	Formulate Budge	t Request	
_	Execute Query		
	Refresh Cache P	age	
Go to top of page			
in a substation of such	ition('//BudgetLayoutsSe		€ 100% +



Step 2 – Click the <Search> button to see all of the available budget form layouts (templates) or use the "Wildcard" search to search for the "17_*" budget layout.

Step 3 – Select the appropriate budget form layout code. In this case, select the 17_AL_ORIGINAL code. *NOTE: These codes are the budget form layouts (templates) used by all users to create specific instances of the forms. Once a user chooses the needed budget form layout, the user will be taken to the primary screen where they can create new instances or search and edit previously created instances of the form layout.*

Reference Data 👻 Security 👻 Utilities	▼ Budget Tasks ▼				
Advantage Performance Budgeting - KBUDNF	🛛 > Budget Tasks > Budget Layout Selection 😒	<u>ه</u>			
Budget Layout Selection Code: 17_* Name: Search Layout Type: Image: Search Search					
		Items 1-2 of 2 🗗			
Code	Name	Layout Type			
17 AL ORIGINAL	FY 17 Allotment Request	Generic			
17 MODIFICATION	FY 17 Appropriation/Allotment Modifications	Generic			
Go to top of page					
<		>			

The Select Budget Request screen will appear. From this screen, a user can search for, create, edit, view or delete an instance of the 17_AL_ORIGINAL budget request form. To search for an existing budget form, a user can use any of the search boxes available above the buttons. Each form's search criteria will be different based on the budget request form selected. There are also several buttons available for users:

- **New** used to create a new budget request form
- Edit used to modify or change an existing budget request form (greyed out until an instance of the form is searched for and selected)
- **View** used to see an existing budget request form but not modify or change (greyed out until an instance of the form is searched for and selected)
- **Delete** used to mark a budget request form for deletion
- **Save** used to confirm and finalize the deletion of a budget request form

Reference Data 👻 Security 👻 Utilities 👻 Budget Tasks 💌						
Advantage Performance Budgeting - KBUDNP > Budget Tasks > Formulate Budget Request > Select Budget Request						
Select Budget Request						
Layout Code: 17_AL_ORIGINAL Request Code:			Stage: 🗸	Archive View: False	✓ <u>S</u> earch	
Layout Type: Generic V Name:	1					
New Edit View Delete Save Display 20 V Items	S <u>o</u> rt					
					Ð	
Request Code	Name	Stage f	und	Program		
	- NO ITEMS TO D	ISPLAY -				



Step 4 – Select the <New> button to create a new 17_AL_ORIGINAL budget request form. This form is used to create the original allotment request for each allotment program and fund type (Fund Type Examples: 0100, 1300, 6350, 0200, 1200) combination. The Create Budget Request screen will appear.

<u>S</u> ave <u>B</u> ack
Create Budget Request
Expand All Collapse All Budget Request Details () Request Code: * Name:
Form: 17_AL_ORIGINAL * Stage:
Budget Request Information
Dimensions

NOTE: On the Create Budget Request screen, there will be various entry fields. Each Create Budget Request screen will be different based on the budget request form being created.

Budget Request Instance Details

- Request Code a unique number assigned to each budget request form instance. This
 field is automatically created by the KBUD application when the user clicks the <Save>
 button. This field is read only and cannot be changed by the user. This code will be
 included in the user's communication to GOPM as part of the justification in any
 appropriation or allotment modification requests.
- Form the budget request layout code selected to create this budget form. This field is read only and cannot be changed by the user. It is filled in automatically, when a user selects the budget request code from the previous screen.
- Name a 60 character name assigned by the user to identify the budget instance. The user can use any name that is meaningful to them, but the same form name cannot be used repeatedly for each specific type of budget request.
- Stage stages are the means by which forms progress through the budget execution process. Budget request forms travel through stages in <u>one direction</u>, and the ability to access the budget request forms is determined by the form's stage and the user's security. Agency users can only access forms that are in Stage 1 during the budget execution process. NOTE: All budget request forms will be created in Stage 1, and GOPM is responsible for advancing forms through subsequent stages.

Dimensions – the information required for this section will change based on the budget request form being created. Every budget request form will contain a program code. *NOTE: The program code used by an agency to create a budget request form for budget execution will always be the appropriation unit code.*



Step 5 – Once the Name and Dimension(s) have been entered, select the <Save> button, and a new instance of the 17_AL_ORIGINAL form will be created.

<u>S</u> ave Back					
Create Budget Request					
Expand All Collapse All					
Request Code: * Name: Public Health - FY17 General Fund Allotments Form: 17_AL_ORIGINAL * Stage: 1					
Budget Request Information					
Dimensions 🗓 ———————————————————————————————————					
Fund: 0100 Ø Program: 7285 Ø					

Once the instance of the form is created, it will be displayed with new tabs available to begin entering the budget request data. In the case below, the budget data entered will be for the FY17 original allotment requests for each Level 6 allotment program that will receive General fund allotments. *NOTE: These programs are beneath the Level 5 appropriation unit 728S in the program consolidation.*

17_AL_ORIGINAL Form Instance	Program	Consolidation	
Action was successful.	728S Public Health	Level 5 - Appropriation	Unit Level
Save Back	7282 HANDS		
Edit Budget Request Allotments Document Management	7283 Reach Out	and Read	
Notify	7284 Healthy Sta	art	
Expand All Collapse All	7285 Smoking C	essation	
Budget Request Details 👔 —	7286 Immunizati	on	
Request Code: 5417 * Name: Public Health - FY17 General Fund All ments Form: 17 AL ORIGINAL	7287 Folic Acid		
• Stage:	7288 Early Child	hood Mental Health	
r ⊡ Reason For Change	7289 Early Child	hood Oral Health	Level 6
	728A General H	ealth Support	Level
Reason Description:	728B Women's	Health	
	728C Prevention	and Quality Improvement	
Budget Request Information	728D Epidemiolo	ogy and Health Planning	
r ⊇ Dimensions []	728J Maternal a	nd Child Health	
Fund: 0100	728L Laboratory	Services	
Program: 728S	728P Public Hea	Ith Protection and Safety	



Allotments Tab

Step 6 - Select the Allotments tab. This is the screen where budget request data will be entered for the Level 6 allotment programs.

Save Back	
Edit Budget Requist Allotments ocument Management	
	Ū,
r⊖ Budget Request Summary 👔	
Layout Code: 17_AL_ORIGINAL Type: Generic 💟 Request Code: 5417 Request Name: Public Health - FY17 General Fund Allotments Stage: 1	
Fund: 0100	
Program: 7285	
Refresh Zero Out Display Sub Total: V Select Model:	
New Line Copy Line Delete Line Export Import Audit Trail Sort View as CSV	
Summary	8 🗆
🔲 Line Program AA Object Budget Object Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Allotment Total Object	
Totals	
No records to	view
Expand All Collapse All	
Go to top of page	

The two buttons located in the upper left-hand side of the screen perform the following functions:

- Save used to save the information entered in all tabs on the budget request form
- Back used to close the budget request form. NOTE: If any changes were made to the budget request form that have not been saved, a confirmation message will appear warning that the changes will be lost.



- If the user wants save the changes, select <Back> to return to the budget request form, and select the <Save> button to finalize your changes.
- If the user wants to continue and discard the changes, select <Continue> to exit the budget request form without saving your changes.

The Static Fields section of the page displays read-only fields that will provide information about the current budget request form instance:

- Layout Code: type of budget request form created
- **Type:** this field will always display Generic
- **Request Code:** the unique number assigned to this budget request form instance
- **Request Name:** the name given to this budget request form instance by the user
- Stage: the current stage of the budget request form
- **Program and Fund:** the dimensions used to create the budget request form.



The buttons located below the Static Field section are used for the following purposes:

- **Refresh** used to refresh and recalculate displayed sub-totals/totals based on changes made in the posting column(s). It does not refresh totals in display columns or save any of the data contained on the budget request form.
- **Zero Out** used to zero out ALL amounts in the posting column(s).
- New Line used to create a new blank budget line.
- **Copy Line** used to copy a budget line with the same chart of account information (dimension) from the selected budget. No posting amounts are copied.
- **Delete Line** used to mark the selected budget line for deletion. However, the deletion of the budget line will not be finalized until the user saves the budget request form by selecting the <SAVE> button.
- Sort used to sort the budget line data in a way that is meaningful to the user.

The links below the Static Field Section are:

- Export and View as CSV used to export the budget line data in the form to a commaseparate value (CSV) file, which can be opened in Excel. In order for this functionality to work, the Internet Option setting changes discussed in <u>Attachment 1: KBUD Setup and</u> <u>Preferences</u> must be completed.
- **Import** used to import budget line data from a comma-separate value (CSV) file into the budget request form.
- Audit Trail used to show the User ID and Timestamp for each change made to the budget lines, as well as comments that were entered by the user.

Step 7 - Select the <New Line> button. This will insert a blank row.

Edit Budget Request Allotments Document Management	t					
						C
🕞 Budget Request Summary 🔋 ———————————————————————————————————						
			L' la la para d			
Layout Code: 17_AL_ORIGINAL Type: Generic	_	Request Name: PL	ublic Health - FY17 General	Fund Allotments	Stage: 1	
	Fund: 0100					
	Program: 728S					
L						
Refresh Zero Out Display Sub Total: 🗸 Select Mode	el: 🔽					
Export Import Au	dit Trail					
New Line Copy Line Delete Line Export Import Aug	dit Trail Sort View as CSV					
Summary						
Line Program AA Object Budget Ob	ject 1 Quarter 1	Quarter 2	Quarter 3	Quarter 4	Allotment Total	Object
✓ 1 X001						
□ 2 X001						
Totals						
	ra ka Page	1 of 1 🕞 🖂 Show 20	✓ rows per page			Rows 1 - 2 of 2
Expand All Collapse All						



Each line will be assigned a line number which is the sequential order of the lines. The fields immediately after the Line column will be dependent on the dimensions (fields) necessary for the budget request form. On the 17_AL_ORIGINAL form, users will need to input the Program and Budget Object for each row of data. The "T" column is the Object Type: "E" for Expense and "R" for Revenue. The Object Type column will automatically be populated once the budget request form is Refreshed or Saved. Located after the dimension columns will be a number of posting columns. The number of posting columns will depend on the budget request form. These are the fields that the user will input actual allotment amounts.



Each dimension field will have a search option available. To use this feature, the user should place the cursor in the desired cell and right mouse click to display the search link. The user will then click the Search... link to search for the needed code.

All dimension fields must be completed before the budget form will save. Posting columns can be blank. *NOTE: If the user tries to save the budget request form with a blank dimension field, the user will receive an error message*.

Step 8 – Enter the budget request data for the Level 6 allotment programs and click the <SAVE> when the user is ready to save the information.

dit Budget Request	Allotments Do	ocument Management						
 Budget Request 	Summary 🚺 —							
Layout Code: 17_	•	Type: Generic 💙 Re	quest Code: 5417	Description (New York)	blic Health - FY17 General F	too di Allaharan ka	Stage: 1	
Layout Code: 1/_	AL_ORIGINAL		nd: 0100	Request Name: Pu	blic Health - FT17 General r	und Allotments	Stage: 1	
		Pn	ogram: 728S					
		tal: 🗹 Select Model:						
<u>N</u> ew Line <u>C</u> opy L	It Display Sub To		—	as CSV				
New Line <u>C</u> opy L	ine De <u>l</u> ete Line	Export Import Audit Tra		as CSV Quarter 2	Quarter 3	Quarter 4	Allotment Total	Object
<u>N</u> ew Line <u>C</u> opy L ummary	ine De <u>l</u> ete Line	Export Import Audit Tra	ail <u>View Graph</u> S <u>o</u> rt <u>View</u>		Quarter 3 11,209,100	Quarter 4 1,897,800	Allotment Total	
New Line <u>C</u> opy L ummary Line Progr	ine De <u>l</u> ete Line	Export Import Audit Tra	ail <u>View Graph</u> Sort <u>View</u>	Quarter 2				Object
New Line Copy L ummary Line Progr 1 728A	am AA Obj	Export Import Audit Tra ject Budget Object QUARTER	ail <u>View Graph</u> Sort <u>View</u>	Quarter 2			0	Object 7,938,400
New Line Copy L ummary Line Progr 1 728A 2 728A	ine Delete Line am AA Obj X001 X001	Export Import Audit Tra ject Budget Object QUARTER 1	ail <u>View Graph</u> Sort <u>View</u>	Quarter 2			0	Object 7,938,400 433,500
New Line Copy L Summary Line Progr 1 728A 2 728A 3 728A 4	am AA Obj X001 X001 X001 X001	Export Import Audit Trr ject Budget Object QUARTER 1 2	ail View Graph 5 ₀ rt View 7 Quarter 1 11,795,200	Quarter 2 2,149,000	11,209,100	1,897,800	0	7,938,400 433,500 18,679,200
New Line Copy L Summary Line Progr 1 728A 2 728A	am AA Obj X001 X001 X001 X001	Export Import Audit Trr ject Budget Object QUARTER 1 2	ail View Graph 5grt View 1 Quarter 1 11,795,200 0	Quarter 2 2,149,000			0	Object 7,938,400 433,500 18,679,200



If you receive an error message on the budget request form, click on the "breadcrumb trail" for the error message at the top of the form, and the row where the error occurred will be highlighted. In this case, Line 4 is highlighted with a bluish color highlight and requires a program code to be entered. Fix the error and click the <SAVE> button until the user receives the confirmation message "Action was successful." To complete this form for submission, the user would finish entering all the Level 6 programs that are being allocated General funds.

Budget Request >> Budget Line 1 >> Program			10012 Reference is rec	uired for 'Program'			
Save Back							
Edit Budget Request Allotments Document Management							
							Ū.
🕞 Budget Request Summary 👔							
Layout Code: 17_AL_ORIGINAL Type: Generic 🗸	Request Code: 5417	Bequest Name: P	ublic Health - FY17 General	Fund Allotments	Stage: 1		
	Fund: 0100						
	Program: 728S						
<u>R</u> efresh <u>Z</u> ero Out Display Sub Total: ✓ Select Model							
New Line Copy Line Delete Line Export Import Audi	t Trail view Graph Sort View	as CSV					
Summary Line Program AA Object Proget Object	ct 1 Quarter 1	Quarter 2	Quarter 3	Quarter 4	Allotment Total		Object
□ 1 728A X001 QUARTER	11,795,200	2,149,000	Quarter 3 11,209,100	Quarter 4 1,897,800		0	Object
□ 2 728A X001 1	11,750,200	2/245/000	11,203,100	1,000,000		0	7,938,4
□ 3 728A 1 3							433,5
☑ 4 X001 4							18,679,2
<							>
Totals	11,795,200	2,149,000	11,209,100	1,897,800		0	27,051,1
	ia da Pag	e 1 of 1 🕞 🖂 Show	20 🔽 rows per page				Rows 1 - 4 of 4

Audit Trail Feature

It is possible the user will be changing the budget line amounts several times before the final submission. Therefore, KBUD includes an **audit trail** feature that will enable you to track these changes. To use the **audit trail** most effectively, fill in the "Reason for Change" box on the Edit Budget Request tab prior to each time you Save the budget form. The "Reason for Change" box can hold up to 255 characters. It is not required, but it could be helpful.

Edit Budget Request	Allotments	Document Ma	nagemer	nt
Notify				
Expand All Collapse All				
┌ 🖃 Budget Request Det	tails 🚺 ——			
Request Code: 5417		* Name:	Public I	Health - FY17 General Fund Allotments
	L_ORIGINAL			
* <mark>Stage:</mark>				
┌ ⊟ Reason For Change				
Reason Description:			<	
Budget Request Inf	ormation —			•
🕞 Dimensions 🚺 —				
Fund: 0100				
Program: 728S				



Section 4: Original Allotment Requests & Modification Requests

Original Allotment Requests

Original Allotment Process Overview

After the biennial budget preparation process has been completed and the appropriation bills enacted, the Governor's Office for Policy and Management (GOPM) will create and load all of the agencies' enacted appropriations within KBUD. Once the appropriations have been completed, each agency will submit their original allotment budget request forms for the upcoming fiscal year to be reviewed and approved by GOPM. Once approved, GOPM will load the appropriations and original allotments into eMARS. The original allotment request process must be completed prior to the beginning of each fiscal year in order for agencies to be able to expend allotted amounts through eMARS.

GOPM will initiate the allotment request process through communication with all state agencies. This communication will outline the allotment request process and the guidelines for preparing and submitting allotment information.

The original allotment requests will follow the process below:

- Original allotment requests are entered in KBUD by the agencies and submitted to GOPM.
- GOPM then reviews, modifies (if necessary), and approves the allotment requests.
- GOPM uploads the allotment data into eMARS.

The original allotment budget request form (17_AL_ORIGINAL) is used to enter the requested amounts for each allotment program prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. There should be one allotment budget request form submitted for each appropriation unit/fund type combination. For example, the Department for Public Health (Appropriation Unit 728S) would submit four allotment budget request forms for FY 2017 because their budget involves four different Fund Types (0100, 1300, 1200, and 6350):

Original Allotment Request Form for each Appropriation Unit/Fund Type

- 728S/0100 (General Fund)
- 728S/1300 (Restricted Fund)
- 728S/1200 (Federal Fund)
- 728S/6350 (Tobacco Fund)

All allotment programs within the same appropriation unit/fund type combination must be submitted on the same form. It is important to note that if an allotment program does not have any allotment amounts, then the agency should <u>not</u> include that allotment program in the allotment budget request form. In addition, only the budget object types used by an allotment program need to be included in the budget lines of the allotment budget request form.



In the example below, Department for Public Health's three allotment programs (728A, 728B, and 728C) do not require an allotments for budget object types 5 and 6 (Debt Service and Capital Outlay). Therefore, no lines were created for these two budget objects.

Line Program	AA Object	Budget Object	1	Quarter 1	Quarter 2	Quarter 3	Quarter 4	Allotment Total	Object
1 728A	X001	1	Е					0	6,595,100
2 728A	X001	3	Е					0	206,300
3 728A	X001	4	Е					0	20,250,900
4 728B	X001	1	Е					0	222,300
5 728B	X001	3	Е					0	16,900
6 728B	X001	4	Е					0	1,367,700
7 728C	X001	1	Е					0	1,561,000
8 728C	X001	3	Е					0	291,800
9 728C	X001	4	Е					0	5,128,600

Allotment Budget Request Process (Step by Step)

To create an allotment budget request form (17_AL_ORIGINAL), complete the following steps after logging into KBUD and navigating to the Home page:

Step 1 –	Click on the	<formulate< th=""><th>Budget Red</th><th>uest> link.</th></formulate<>	Budget Red	uest> link.

CGI Advantage KBUDN	P
Reference Data 👻 Security	👻 Utilities 👻 Budget Tasks 👻
Advantage Performance Budget	ing - KBUDNP > Budget Tasks
Budget Tasks	
	Categories
	Dimensions - This contains links to the Dimensions the users can edit.
	Pages
	Formulate Budget Request
	Execute Query
	Refresh Cache Page
Go to top of page	

Step 2 – Click on the <17_AL_ORIGINAL> link to begin the process of creating an instance of the form.

CGI Advantage KBUDNP	
Reference Data 🔻 Security 👻 Utilities 👻 Budget Tasks 👻	
Advantage Performance Budgeting - KBUDNP > Budget Tasks > Budget	Layout Selection 😒
Budget Layout Selection	
Code: Name:	<u>S</u> earch
Layout Type:	
Display 20 🔽 Items Sort	
Code	Name
1618 CAPITAL EXPEND	Capital Request Expenditures
16 AL ORIGINAL	FY 16 Allotment Request
16 MODIFICATION	FY 16 Appropriation/Allotment Modifications
17 AL ORIGINAL	FY 17 Allotment Request
17 MODIFICATION	FY 17 Appropriation/Allotment Modifications
Go to top of page	



Step 3 – Click on the <NEW> button to create a new instance of the form.

CGI Advantage KBUDNP		Welcome, RVJ0040 Mes	sages(0) [Home 🖻
Reference Data 🔻 Security 👻 Utilities 👻 Budget Tasks 💌			
Advantage Performance Budgeting - KBUDNP > Budget Tasks > Formulate Budget Re	quest > Select Budget Request		
Select Budget Request			
Layout Code: 17_AL_ORIGINAL Request Code:	9	Stage: V Archive View:	False Search
Request Code	Name	Stage	Fund
	- NO ITEMS TO	DISPLAY -	
Go to top of page			

Step 4 – Enter the following information in the fields on the form and click the <SAVE> button:

- Name: Enter the name of the form. This name will always be assigned to this allotment budget request form. It is recommended that the user choose a meaningful name that can help identify the Appropriation Unit/Fund Type combination represented by the budget request form. You may enter up to 60 characters with spaces. A good "rule of thumb" would be to enter the appropriation unit program name followed by the fund type name or code (i.e. FY17 DPH Tobacco Fund Allotment).
- Stage: By default, all forms will be created in Stage 1. NOTE: GOPM will advance forms through subsequent stages.
- **Program:** This field is used to designate the appropriation unit program code for this budget request form. The program code will always be the appropriation unit code, also known as the Function Group in eMARS (i.e. 728S for Department for Public Health).
- Fund: This field is used to designate the fund type for this budget request form.

Save Back
Create Budget Request
Expand All Collapse All [] Budget Request Details []
Request Code: * Name: FY17 DPH Tobacco Fund Allotment Form: 17_AL_ORIGINAL * Stage: 1
□ Budget Request Information
Fund: 6350 # Program: 728S #



Once the <SAVE> button has been clicked, an instance of the 17_AL_ORIGINAL form will be created to include the Allotments tab where the user will finish entering the actual allotment budget request amounts:

Edit Budget Request Allotments Document Management
Notify
Expand All Collapse All
😑 Budget Request Details 🔋 —
Request Code: 5364 * Name: FY17 DPH Tobacco Fund Allotment
Form: 17_AL_ORIGINAL
* Stage:
Reason Description:
Budget Request Information
□ Dimensions 👔
Fund: 6350
Program: 728S

Step 5 – Click on the Allotments tab and enter the actual allotment budget request amounts by adding new lines to the form and click the <SAVE> button to complete the form.

• The example below is a single budget request for the appropriation unit 728S (Dept for Public Health) and fund type 6350 (Tobacco). This example allots \$13,383,800 to six different allotment programs (7282, 7284, 7285, 7287, 7288, and 7289) across four quarters. The amounts entered for the four quarters should be representative of the actual expected expenditure rates. NOTE: General Fund ONLY allotments are also divided by the budget object types. The budget object type amounts would be entered in the Object column (Note: The screenshot below does not have any amounts entered in the Object column because this is not a General Fund budget request).

dit B	udget Request Allo	tments bocume	ent Management						
	Budget Request Summ	•							
Lay	out Code: 17_AL_OR	IGINAL Typ		Request Code: 5364	Request Name: FY	17 DPH Tobacco Fund Allot	ment	Stage: 99	
				und: 6350					
			P	Program: 728S					
	/ Line <u>C</u> opy Line	Delete Line Exp	ort Import Audit T	rail <u>View Graph</u> Sort <u>View</u>	as CSV				
ımı	r Line <u>C</u> opy Line ma ry Line Program	Delete Line Exp	ort Import Audit T	<u>- 30</u> 1 <u>view</u>	as CSV Quarter 2	Quarter 3	Quarter 4	Allotment Total	D 5
ımı] 1	mary	Dejete Line		<u>- 30</u> 1 <u>view</u>		Quarter 3 2,070,000	Quarter 4 1,980,000	Allotment Total 9,000,000	D 🗗
mr 1	ma ry Line Program	AA Object	Budget Object	J Quarter 1	Quarter 2	-			
I I I	ma ry Line Program 1 7282	AA Object X011	Budget Object QUARTER	Jog time View 1 Quarter 1 E 2,700,000	Quarter 2 2,250,000	2,070,000	1,980,000	9,000,000	
	mary Line Program 1 7282 2 7284	AA Object X011 X011	Budget Object QUARTER QUARTER	I Quarter 1 E 2,700,000 E 300,000	Quarter 2 2,250,000 250,000	2,070,000 230,000	1,980,000 220,000	9,000,000 1,000,000	
mr	mary Line Program 1 7282 2 7284 3 7285	AA Object X011 X011 X011 X011	Budget Object QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER	I Quarter 1 E 2,700,000 E 300,000 E 541,100	Quarter 2 2,250,000 250,000 451,000	2,070,000 230,000 414,900	1,980,000 220,000 396,800	9,000,000 1,000,000 1,803,800	
	mary Line Program 1 7282 2 7284 3 7285 4 7288	AA Object X011 X011 X011 X011 X011	Budget Object QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER	United in the second	Quarter 2 2,250,000 250,000 451,000 250,000	2,070,000 230,000 414,900 230,000	1,980,000 220,000 396,800 220,000	9,000,000 1,000,000 1,803,800 1,000,000	
	mary Line Program 1 7282 2 7284 3 7285 4 7288 5 7287 6 7289	AA Object X011 X011 X011 X011 X011 X011	Budget Object QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER	Image: Signature of the second seco	Quarter 2 2,250,000 250,000 451,000 250,000 40,000 125,000	2,070,000 230,000 414,900 230,000 0 115,000	1,980,000 220,000 396,800 220,000 0 110,000	9,000,000 1,000,000 1,803,800 1,000,000 80,000 500,000	
	mary Line Program 1 7282 2 7284 3 7285 4 7288 5 7287	AA Object X011 X011 X011 X011 X011 X011	Budget Object QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER	Quarter 1 E 2,700,000 E 300,000 E 541,100 E 300,000 E 4,000 E 150,000 E 4,031,100 E 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000	Quarter 2 2,250,000 250,000 451,000 250,000 40,000	2,070,000 230,000 414,900 230,000 0 115,000 3,059,900	1,980,000 220,000 396,800 220,000 0	9,000,000 1,000,000 1,803,800 1,000,000 80,000	



Appropriation and Allotment Modification Requests

Appropriation and Allotment Modification Request Process Overview

A modification budget request form can be used to submit changes to the original appropriation, allotment, and/or quarterly revenue revision amounts. Here are two most common examples for completing a modification request form:

- Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, agencies submit their original allotments via the 17_AL_ORIGINAL Form. These original allotment requests are the agency's best forecast for matching quarterly allotment amounts to the agency's actual quarterly expenditure patterns. However, these expenditure amounts may need to shift throughout the fiscal year based on changing quarterly needs. Therefore, an allotment modification request may be necessary to make adjustments to the original allotment requests in order to realign quarterly allotment amounts to the agency's actual quarterly expenditure needs.
- In another common example, modification requests may be needed due to a change in the appropriation. For example, an agency may receive a new federal grant during the course of the fiscal year. Therefore a modification request will need to be submitted for an increase in the appropriation, allotment, and quarterly revenue revision amounts.

If an appropriation, allotment, or quarterly revenue revision must be modified during the fiscal year, a modification budget request form (17_MODIFICATION) must be completed. Once the modification request has been processed and approved in KBUD, GOPM will load the change in eMARS. The agencies should discuss these modifications as they materialize with their GOPM analyst. Agencies initiate the modification request process through written communication with GOPM. This communication outlines the reason for the modification and the amount of change. A copy of this written request is also transmitted to the LRC.

The modification budget request forms follow the process below:

- The modification budget request forms (17_MODIFICATION) are entered in KBUD by the agency.
- The agency submits written request to GOPM for the modification, including the program code, fund, budget request code, and reason for modification of the specific KBUD modification form.
- GOPM will then review, modify (if necessary), and approve the modification.
- GOPM uploads the modified data into eMARS and forwards a copy to LRC for reporting purposes only.



Allotment Modification Request Process (Step by Step)

Example 1 – Modification to allotment only (no change to appropriation or quarterly revenue)

This is an example of a Department for Public Health General Fund allotment modification budget request adjusting the allotment amounts between quarters and budget object types.

To create an allotment modification request form (17_MODIFICATION), complete the following steps after logging into KBUD and navigating to the Home page:

Step 1 – Click on the <Formulate Budget Request> link.

CGI Advantage KBUDNP	
Reference Data - Security -	Utilities 🔹 Budget Tasks 👻
Advantage Performance Budgeting	g - KBUDNP > Budget Tasks
Budget Tasks	
	Categories Dimensions - This contains links to the Dimensions the users can edit. Pages Formulate Budget Request Execute Query Refresh Cache Page
Go to top of page	-

Step 2 – Click on the <17_MODIFICATION> link to begin the process of creating an instance of the form.

	dvantage KBUDNP	
Refere	ence Data 🔻 Security 🔻 Utilities 👻 Budget Tasks 👻	
Advant	age Performance Budgeting - KBUDNP > Budget Tasks > Budget L	ayout Selection 💊
Bud	get Layout Selection	
Code:	Name:	Search
Layou	t Type: 💌	
Displa	ay 20 🗸 Items Sort	
	Code	Name
	1618 CAPITAL EXPEND	Capital Request Expenditures
	16 AL ORIGINAL	FY 16 Allotment Request
	16 MODIFICATION	FY 16 Appropriation/Allotment Modifications
	17 AL ORIGINAL	FY 17 Allotment Request
D	17 MODIFICATION	FY 17 Appropriation/Allotment Modifications
Go to to	op of page	



Step 3 – Click on the <NEW> button to create a new instance of the form.

CGI Advantage KBUDNP	Welcome, RVJ0040	Messages(0) [Home 🖻	Help Preferences	Reports Edit Password Logout
Reference Data 🔻 Security 👻 Utilities 👻	Budget Tasks 👻			
Advantage Performance Budgeting - KBUDNP > 1	Budget Tasks > Formulate	Budget Request > Select	Budget Request	
Select Budget Request				
				I
Layout 17_MODIFICATION Request Code:			Stage:	View: False Search
Layout Generic V Name: Type: Program:		9		
Fund:				
<u>N</u> ew Edit <u>V</u> iew De <u>l</u> ete S <u>a</u> ve Displa	ay 20 💙 Items Sort			
				8
Request Code	Name	Stage	Fund	Program
	- NO IT	EMS TO DISPLAY -		
Go to top of page				

Step 4 – Enter the following information in the fields on the form and click the <SAVE> button:

- **Name:** Enter the name of the form. It is recommended that the user choose a meaningful name that can help identify the Appropriation Unit/Fund Type combination represented by the budget request form. You may enter up to 60 characters with spaces. A good "rule of thumb" would be to enter the appropriation unit program name followed by the fund type name or code (i.e. FY17 DPH General Fund Modification-1).
- Stage: By default, all forms will be created in Stage 1. NOTE: GOPM will advance forms through subsequent stages.
- **Program:** This field is used to designate the appropriation unit program code for this budget request form. The program code will always be the appropriation unit code, as known as the Function Group in eMARS (i.e. 728S for Department for Public Health).
- Fund: This field is used to designate the CAFR fund type for this request form.

Save Back
Create Budget Request
Expand All Collapse All
Request Code: * Name: FY17 DPH General Fund Modification-1 Form: 17_MODIFICATION * Stage: 1
Budget Request Information
Dimensions Dimensions Dimensions Dimensions Dimensions Dimensions Dimensions Dimensions Dimension Dimensio



Once the <SAVE> button has been clicked, an instance of the 17_MODIFICATION form will be created to include the AL Modification, AP Modification, and Quarterly Revenue Revision tabs. *NOTE: Not all the tabs will have to be used when requesting a modification.* In this case, the AL Modification tab will be the only tab used to enter the modification request:

Edit Budget Request	AL Modification	AP Modification	Quarterly Revenue Revision	Document Management
Notify				
Expand All Collapse Al	L			
Budget Request De	tails 🚺 ———			
Request Code: 5418	3	* Name: FY17	DPH General Fund Modificatio	n-1
Form: 17_M	ODIFICATION			
* <mark>Stage:</mark> 1 🗸]			
☐ Reason For Change Reason Description:	3	< >		
Budget Request Int	formation ———			
Dimensions 🚺 —				
Fund: GNRL				
Program: 728S				

Step 5 – Click on the AL Modification tab and enter the actual allotment modification request amounts by adding new lines to the form and click the $\langle SAVE \rangle$ button to complete the form.

- In this specific example, the agency (appropriation unit 728S) will be hiring a new staff assistant at the beginning of Quarter 3 and needs to realign allotment amounts of \$50,000 from one allotment program to another, and it also involves realigning allotment amounts of \$50,000 from one budget object to another.
- The first line reduces program 728C's General Fund allotment amounts by \$25,000 for both Quarters 3 and 4 (\$50,000 Total).
- The second line reduces 728C's General Fund allotment amounts for Budget Object 4 (Grants/Loans/Benefits) by \$50,000.
- The third line increases program 728A's General Fund allotment amounts by \$25,000 for both Quarters 3 and 4 (\$50,000 Total).
- The fourth line increases 728A's General Fund allotment amounts for Budget Object 1 (Personnel) by \$50,000.



dit Budget Reque	AL Modific				-						
 Budget Request 	Summary 🕻	0									
Layout Code: 17_1	HODEFICATE	N Type:	Generic 🔽	Request Code:	5418		Request Name: FY17 DPH	General Fund Modifica	stion-1	Stage: 1	
				Fund:	GNRL						
				Program:	7285						
Befresh Zero Out					ab Sgrt	View as CSV					
jew Line <u>C</u> opy Li Immary	ne Dejete	Line Export	Import Aud	t Trail View Grad			Ounder 3	Duniter 4	All-stone and Total	InsTated	Object
ew Line Copy Line Program	ne Dejete Fund	AA Object	Impart Aud Budget Object	t Trail View Gran		View as CSV Quarter 2	Quarter 3	Quarter 4	Allotment Total	Unallotted	Object
jew Line <u>C</u> opy Li Immary Line Program 1 1728C	Fund	AA Object	Budget Object QUARTER	t Trail View Gran	1	Quarter 2	-25,000	-25,000	-50,000		
gew Line Copy Line Line Program J 1 728C 2 728C	Fund 0100 X02	AA Object	Budget Object QUARTER 4	t Trail View Gras	1 0	Quarter 2	-25,000	-25,000	-50,000	0	Object -50,00
Gopy Line Copy Line Line Program J 1 2 728C 3 728A	Fund	AA Object	Budget Object QUARTER 4	t Trail View Gran	1	Quarter 2	-25,000	-25,000	-50,000		

Note: the AA Object code will prepopulate on the line. The form will default to the X010 code for allotment modification since this is the most common code. However, users can change the code as necessary.


Kentucky Budget System (KBUD) – 2017 Budget Execution Manual

Example 2 – Modification to the appropriation, allotment and quarterly revenue amounts This is an example of a Department for Public Health Federal Fund allotment modification budget request. In this example, an additional federal grant award was secured; therefore there is a need to increase the appropriation, allotment, and quarterly revenue amounts.

To create an allotment modification request form (17_MODIFICATION), complete the following steps after logging into KBUD and navigating to the Home page:

CGI Advantage KBUD	NP
Reference Data 👻 Securit	y 🔻 Utilities 👻 Budget Tasks 👻
Advantage Performance Budg	eting - KBUDNP > Budget Tasks
Budget Tasks	
	Categories
	Dimensions - This contains links to the Dimensions the users can edit.
	Pages
	Formulate Budget Request
	Execute Query
	Refresh Cache Page
Go to top of page	

Step 1 – Click on the <Formulate Budget Request> link.

Step 2 – Click on the <17_MODIFICATION> link to begin the process of creating an instance of the form.

	Advantage KBUDNP					
Refere	ence Data 🔻 Security 👻 🛛	Utilities 👻	Budget Tasks 🔻			
Advant	tage Performance Budgeting -	KBUDNP >	Budget Tasks > Bud	dget La	yout Selection 💊	
Bud	lget Layout Selecti	on				
Code:		Name:				<u>S</u> earch
Layou	t Type: 🔽					
Displ	ay 20 🔽 Items Sort					
	Code				Name	
	1618 CAPITAL EXPEND				Capital Request Expenditures	
	16 AL ORIGINAL				FY 16 Allotment Request	
	16 MODIFICATION				FY 16 Appropriation/Allotment Modific	ations
	17 AL ORIGINAL				FY 17 Allotment Request	
E	17 MODIFICATION				FY 17 Appropriation/Allotment Modific	ations
Go to to	op of page					



Step 3 – Click on the <NEW> button to create a new instance of the form.

CGI Advantage KBUDNP	Welcome, RVJ0040	Messages(0) [Home 🖻	Help Preferences	Reports Edit Password Logout
Reference Data 🔻 Security 👻 Utilities 👻	Budget Tasks 🔻			
Advantage Performance Budgeting - KBUDNP > 1	Budget Tasks > Formulate	e Budget Request > Select E	Budget Request	
Select Budget Request				
				I)
Layout 17_MODIFICATION Request Code:			Stage:	✓ Archive False ✓ Search
Layout Type: Generic V Name:		<i>a</i>		
Fund: View Program:		9		
<u>N</u> ew Edit <u>V</u> iew Delete Save Displa	ay 20 💙 Items Sor	t		
				Ð
Request Code	Name	Stage	Fund	Program
	- NO IT	EMS TO DISPLAY -		
Go to top of page				

Step 4 – Enter the following information in the fields on the form and click the <SAVE> button:

- Name: Enter the name of the form. This name will always be assigned to this allotment budget request form. It is recommended that the user choose a meaningful name that can help identify the Appropriation Unit/Fund Type combination represented by the budget request form. You may enter up to 60 characters with spaces. A good "rule of thumb" would be to enter the appropriation unit program name followed by the fund type name or code (i.e. FY17 DPH Federal Fund Modification-1).
- Stage: By default, all forms will be created in Stage 1. NOTE: GOPM will advance forms through subsequent stages.
- **Program:** This field is used to designate the appropriation unit program code for this budget request form. The program code will always be the appropriation unit code, as known as the Function Group in eMARS (i.e. 728S for Department for Public Health).
- Fund: This field is used to designate the CAFR fund type for this request form.

Save Back							
Create Budget Request							
Expand All Collapse All							
Request Code: * Name: FY17 DPH Federal Fund Modification-1 Form: 17_MODIFICATION * Stage: 1							
_ □ Budget Request Information							
Dimensions FORL Program: 7285							
Program: 728S							



Once the <SAVE> button has been clicked, an instance of the 17_MODIFICATION form will be created to include the Request Code, AL Modification tab, AP Modification tab, and Quarterly Revenue Revision tab. *NOTE: Not all the tabs will always need to be used when requesting a modification.* In this case, all three tabs will be used to enter the modification request:

<u>S</u> ave <u>B</u> ack	
Edit Budget Reques	AL Modification AP Modification Quarterly Revenue Revision Document Management
Notify	
Expand All Collapse All	
- Budget Request De	tails 🗓 ————
Request Code: 5419	* Name: FY17 DPH Federal Fund Modification-1
	IODIFICATION
* <mark>Stage:</mark> 1 V	
Reason For Change	
Reason Description:	\sim
Budget Request Inf	ormation
┌	
Fund: FDRL	
Program: 728S	

Step 5 – Click on the AL Modification tab and enter the actual allotment modification request amounts by adding new lines to the form and click the $\langle SAVE \rangle$ button to complete the form.

- In this specific example, the agency (appropriation unit 728S) has received an additional \$600,000 grant award to an existing federal grant supporting smoking cessation to increase public outreach and support additional cessation treatments. The additional funds will be available starting in Quarter 2 of the current fiscal year. The agency plans on hiring two additional parttime personnel to help with the outreach in various areas of the state and to provide additional funds to the local health departments to help pay for additional cessation treatments.
- In the screen below, the agency will use the expenditure forecast shown to add a new budget line to the form to allot \$600,000 in funds across the Quarters 2, 3, and 4 for allotment program 7285 (Smoking Cessation) using Fund 1200 (Federal), AA Object X010 (Other Budget Revision), and Budget Object Quarter.

Smoking Cessation	Quarter 2	Quarter 3	Quarter 4	FY Total
Personnel	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$60,000
Treatment	\$180,000	\$260,000	\$100,000	\$540,000
Total	\$200,000	\$280,000	\$120,000	\$600,000

Expenditure Forecast



Save Back								
Edit Budget Request AL Modification AP Modification Quarterly Revenue Revision Document Management								
					(
┌								
Layout Code: 17_MODIFICATION Type: Generic 🗸 Request Code: 5419	Request Name: FY17 DP	H Federal Fund Modification-1	Stage: 1					
Fund: FDRL								
Program: 728S								
Refresh Zero Out Display Sub Total: Select Model:								
New Line Copy Line Delete Line Export Import Audit Trail View Graph Sort	t <u>View as CSV</u>							
Summary					• 2 •			
Line Program Fund AA Object Budget 1 Quarter 1	Quarter 2 Quarter 3	Quarter 4 Allotment Total	Unallotted	Object				
2 1 7285 1200 X010 QUARTER E 200,000 280,000 120,000 600,000								
Totals 0	200,000 280,000	120,000 600,0	00 0	0				
tid < Page 1 of 1 ⇒> ⇒t Show 20 ♥ rows per page Rows 1								

Step 6 – Click on the AP Modification tab and enter the actual appropriation modification request amount by adding a new budget line to the form and click the $\langle SAVE \rangle$ button to complete the form.

• In the screen below, the user adds one new budget line and fills in the AA Object code and Appropriation Mod field with the total amount of the modification, \$600,000.

Save Back				
Edit Budget Request AL Modification AP Modification Quar	rterly Revenue Revision Document Ma	inagement		
┌				
Layout Code: 17_MODIFICATION Type: Generic V	Request Code: 5419	Request Name: FY17 DPH Fede	ral Fund Modification-1	Stage: 1
F	Fund: FDRL			
F	Program: 728S			
Refresh Zero Out Display Sub Total: 🗹 Select Model:				
New Line Copy Line Delete Line Export Audit Trail	ort View as CSV			
Summary				
Line Budget Object	1	AA Object	Appropriation Mod	
✓ 1 APPROP		K010		600,000
Totals				
	14 <4	Page 1 of 1 INN INN 20	v rows per page	

Step 7 – Click on the Quarterly Revenue Revision tab and enter the quarterly revenue amounts from this new grant award by adding a new line to the form and click the $\langle SAVE \rangle$ button to complete the form.

• In the screen below, the user adds one new budget line and populates the budget object, Quarter 2, 3, and 4 fields with the appropriate information based on the expenditure schedule below. *NOTE: New lines will automatically default to Budget Object CURREC*:



Kentucky Budget System (KBUD) – 2017 Budget Execution Manual

Smoking Cessation	Quarter 2	Quarter 3	Quarter 4	FY Total
Personnel	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$60,000
Treatment	\$180,000	\$260,000	\$100,000	\$540,000
Total	\$200,000	\$280,000	\$120,000	\$600,000

Save Back									
Edit Budget Request AL Modification AP Modification Quarterly Revenue Revision	Edit Budget Request AL Modification AP Modification Quarterly Revenue Revision Document Management								
┌⊟ Budget Request Summary 👔									
Layout Code: 17_MODIFICATION Type: Generic V Request Code: 5419	Request Name:	FY17 DPH Federal Fund Modification	-1 Stage:	1					
Fund: FDRL									
Program: 728S									
Refresh Zero Out Display Sub Total: V Select Model: V									
New Line Copy Line Delete Line Export Audit Trail View Graph Sort y	iew as CSV								
Summary									
Line Budget Object 1 Quarter 1	Quarter 2	Quarter 3	Quarter 4	Revenue Total Revised FY 16-17					
I CURREC R	200,000	280,000	120,000	300,000					
Totals 0			-120,000	-300,000					
	He Ke Page 1 of 1 H>	Show 20 rows per page		Rows 1 - 1 of 1					

NOTE: the Revenue Total Revised FY 16-17 column will fill in automatically by the system when the user clicks the <SAVE> button. The amount should represent the accumulative amount for <u>all previously approved</u> FY17 Modifications processed for 728S Federal Funds. Therefore, based on the screen above, there have been previous modifications submitted and approved for 728S/Federal funds for \$300,000.



Process for Submitting Appropriation Modification Requests to GOPM

Depending on your agency's guidelines for review, your appropriation modification request is now ready for submission to GOPM. You will need to send your written justification along with the modification report to your GOPM analyst.

Upon receipt of your written justification, the GOPM budget analyst will then access your modification budget request form for review. The GOPM analyst will want to access the request at the agency stage level 1, so if any changes need to be made, the agency can make those changes and resubmit the request to GOPM.

Upon approval, GOPM will upload the modification data to eMARS. A copy will also be forwarded to LRC by GOPM.

Quarterly Schedule for Appropriation Modification Requests

QUARTER	DUE DATE	REPORT DATE	EFFECTIVE DATE
1 st Quarter	June 15	July 1	August 1
2 nd Quarter	September 15	October 1	November 1
3 rd Quarter	December 15	January 1	February 1
4 th Quarter	March 15	April 1	May 1

APPROPRIATION MODIFICATION QUARTERLY REPORTING SCHEDULE

Appropriation modification requests are processed on a quarterly schedule. The table above shows the due date from the agency to GOPM, report date from GOPM to LRC and effective date for the loading to eMARS for each quarter.

Requests for Appropriation modifications must be submitted on or before the due date for the modification to be included in the packet submitted from GOPM to LRC for review by the Appropriation and Revenue Committee.



Section 5: KBUD Queries

Queries can be run within the KBUD application to display financial data. Generally, queries are the best way to review data in KBUD. Queries resemble Excel spreadsheets because they display the data in rows and columns. The following is a sample query result of an FY 17 allotment request:

	Qtr 1	Qtr 2	Allotment Qtr 3 FY 16-17		Unallotted FY 16-17	Allotment Total FY 16-17	Object Class FY 16-17	Appropriation Amount FY 16-17
Summary 728S: Public Health								
Quarter	89,127,200	74,279,400	68,436,100	65,194,500		<u>297,037,200</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>
Appropriation	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>c</u>	<u>0</u>	1	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	368,148,500
728S: Public Health								
Appropriation	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	1	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	368,148,500
7282: HANDS								
Quarter	<u>9,472,400</u>	7,893,700	7,262,200	6,946,500		<u>31,574,800</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>
7283: Reach Out and Read								
7284: Healthy Start								
Quarter	300,000	250,000	230,000	220,000		<u>1,000,000</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>
7285: Smoking Cessation								
Quarter	541,100	451,000	414,900	396,800		<u>1,803,800</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>
7286: Immunization								
7287: Folic Acid								
Quarter	40,000	40,000	<u>c</u>	<u>0</u>		<u>80,000</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>
7288: Early Childhood Mental Health								
Quarter	300,000	250,000	230,000	220,000		<u>1,000,000</u>	0	<u>0</u>
7289: Early Childhood Oral Health								
Quarter	150,000	125,000	115,000	110,000		<u>500,000</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>
728A: General Health Support								
Quarter	6,441,500	5,367,900	4,938,500	4,723,800		21,471,700	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>
728B: Women's Health								
Quarter	2,972,000	2,476,700	2,278,600	2,179,500		<u>9,906,800</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>
728C: Prevention and Quality Improvement								
Quarter	1,628,400	1,357,000	1,248,400	1,194,200		5,428,000	0	0
728D: Epidemiology and Health Planning								
Quarter	13,384,600	11,153,800	10,261,500	9,815,400		44,615,300	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>
728J: Maternal and Child Health								
Quarter	49,215,700	41,013,000	37,731,900	36,091,400		164,052,000	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>
728L: Laboratory Services								
Quarter	1,950,200	1,625,200	1,625,200	1,300,000		6,500,600	0	<u>0</u>
728P: Public Health Protection and Safety								
Quarter	2,731,300	2,276,100	2,099,900	1,996,900	1	9,104,200	. <u>o</u>	<u>0</u>



How to Access and Run a KBUD Query

Step 1 - The query option is available on the Home Page as well as on the Budget Tasks submenu. Click the <Execute Query> link.

Reference Data 🔻	Security 🔻 Utilities 🔻 Budget Tasks 👻								
Advantage Perform	nance Budgeting - Training > Budget Tasks	A							
Budget Tasks									
	Categories								
	Dimensions - This contains links to the Dimensions the users can edit.								
	Pages								
	Formulate Budget Request								
[Execute Query								
-	Refresh Cache Page								
Go to top of page									

The user can now view the "Execute Query" page and search for the specific query.

One of the commonly used functions is Wildcard searches. A Wildcard search allows the user to search and find items that have related names or codes. There are three ways to use the Wildcard search:

- 1) Use an asterisk after the words or numbers; this will return a list of queries that BEGINS with your search word/number.
- 2) Use an asterisk before the words or numbers; this will return a list of queries that ENDS in your search word/number.
- 3) Use an asterisk before and after the words or numbers; this will return a list of queries that use your words/numbers anywhere in the field being search.

For example, if the user wanted to see all of the queries available for the FY 2017 budget execution, type "17_*" in the Code textbox and select the <Search> button.

	Reference Data 🔹 Security 👻 Utilities 👻 Budget Tasks 👻 Advantage Performance Budgeting - KBUDNP > Budget Tasks > Execute Query 🗇 📑										
Execute Query											
Code: 17_# × Name: Query V Public: V Display All V Items Sort Items 1-4 of 4 Public: Items											
Code		Name		Query Type							
17 AP VS A	EMARS	FY 2017 Original AP vs AL Loaded to eMARS		Budget Data							
17 AP REVIS	ED	FY 2017 Revised Appropriations		Budget Data							
17 AL ORIG	NAL	FY 2017 Original Allotments		Budget Data							
17 NGE		FY 2017 Necessary Government Expenses		Budget Data							



Step 2 - From this Execute Query page, click the <17_AL_ORIGINAL> query to view the original allotment amounts for a specific allotment program and CAFR fund type combination.

Reference Data 👻 Security 👻 Utilities 👻	Budget Tasks 👻		
Advantage Performance Budgeting - KBUDNP =	> Budget Tasks > Execute Query 😒		
Execute Query			
			Ū.
Code: 17_* × Name:		Query	Public: 🗹 Search
		Type:	
Display All 💙 Items Sort			
			Items 1-4 of 4 🗗
Code	Name		Query Type
17 AP VS AL EMARS	FY 2017 Original AP vs AL Loaded to eMARS		Budget Data
17 AP REVISED	FY 2017 Revised Appropriations		Budget Data
17 AL ORIGINAL	FY 2017 Original Allotments		Budget Data
17 NGE	FY 2017 Necessary Government Expenses		Budget Data

Step 3 - From this Query Results page, choose all of the query parameters necessary to get the results desired and click the <QUERY> button to execute the query and view the results.

- In the example below, program 728S (Public Health) and CAFR fund type TBCO (Tobacco Funds) will be used. The query results are dependent upon the parameters (filters) entered by the user. In this example, the user will need to enter the Fund Code "TBCO", Program Code "728S", and Budget Period Code "2017" (NOTE: 2017 will be the default code for all the 2017 Budget Execution queries).
- The user can also choose the level of detail for the query results by changing the query parameters:
 - Tabbed Dimension: Choose the dimension from the drop down menu you want to show on a separate tab – for example if you wish to see a separate tab for each appropriation unit and all of the allotments below it you would select "Program" from the drop down list. The choices in the drop down will depend on the report; different reports will have different choices.
 - Level: The level field directly relates to the level of the Consolidation table associated with the Dimension selected. For example, to see a tab for all of the allotments beneath a particular appropriation unit, the user should select Level "6", since the level "6" on the Program Consolidation table is the allotment level.
 - Show All Levels: This checkbox determines whether all data between the selected dimension and the level selected is displayed in the QUERY results. Tab Results: Determines the level of detail shown. Options are "Summary", "Detail" or "Both".



Kentucky Budget System (KBUD) – 2017 Budget Execution Manual

uery Results		Pop up Searc	ch Screen	
uery				
Query Information 👔	Fund Search	•		
Duery Code: 17 AL ORIGINAL New Query Edit Query				
Edit Model	Cons Code	iolidation FUND_CONSOLIDATION Dimension		Level:
Toggle Column: COLUMN1 V Edit Conditional Format	Search Cancel			
	Display 20 V Items Sort			
Query Parameters 🗓 ———————————————————————————————————	Item Page: 1 2 3			
Dimension Filters	Code	Dimension Code	Dimension Name	
r Fund	Select & FUND_CONSOLIDATION	0	Default	
r Default Consolidation: ⋪ ───── r Default Dimension Code: ⋪ ──	Select 🛷 FUND_CONSOLIDATION	CPTL	Capital Fund	
	Select FUND_CONSOLIDATION	TBCO	Tobacco Fund	
Code: FUND_CONSOLIDATION	Select FUND_CONSOLIDATION	APF1	Appropriation Fund Dummy Level 1	
	Select # FUND_CONSOLIDATION	FDRL	Federal Fund	
Program	Select Select FUND_CONSOLIDATION	GNRL.	General Fund	
Default Consolidation: Q Default Dimension Code: Q	Select - FUND_CONSOLIDATION	APF2	Appropriation Fund Dummy Level 1	
Code: 2017BUDEXEC 🕥 Code: 728S	Select FUND_CONSOLIDATION	HWY	Highway Bonds	
	Select # FUND_CONSOLIDATION	ROAD	Road Fund	
Budget Period	Select Select FUND_CONSOLIDATION	RSTD	Restricted Fund	
r Default Consolidation: 𝒜 ───── r Default dimension Code: 𝒜 ───	Select / FUND_CONSOLIDATION	1200	Federal Fund	
Code: BUDGET_PERIOD_CON: 🗑 Code: 2017	Select & FUND_CONSOLIDATION	2900	Horse Park Commission Fund	
	c)

The results of the query show both the Summary and Detailed results.

	Qtr 1	Qtr 2	Qtr 3		Unallotted	Allotment Total	Object Class	Appropriation Amount
Summary 728S: Public Health								
Quarter	4,031,100	3,366,000	3,059,900	2,926,800	c	13,383,800	0	0
		0		0				13,383,800
Appropriation Summary Results	-	_	-	_	-			
Appropriation	0	0	0	0		<u> </u>	0	13 393 900
7282: HANDS								
Quarter	2,700,000	2,250,000	2,070,000	1,980,000	<u>0</u>	9,000,000	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>
7283: Reach Out and Read								
7284: Healthy Start								
Quarter	300,000	250,000	230,000	220,000	<u>0</u>	<u>1,000,000</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>
7285: Smoking Cessation								
Quarter	541,100	451,000	414,900	<u>396,800</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>1,803,800</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>
7286: Immunization								
7287: Folic Acid Detailed Results								
	40,000	40,000	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>(</u>	<u>80,000</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>
7288: Early Childhood Mental Health								
Quarter	300,000	250,000	230,000	220,000	<u>(</u>	<u>1,000,000</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>
7289: Early Childhood Oral Health								
Quarter	150,000	125,000	<u>115,000</u>	<u>110,000</u>	<u>(</u>	<u> </u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>
728A: General Health Support								
728B: Women's Health								
728C: Prevention and Quality Improvement								
728D: Epidemiology and Health Planning 728J: Maternal and Child Health								
728J: Maternal and Child Health 728L: Laboratory Services								
728L: Laboratory Services 728P: Public Health Protection and Safety								
728P: Public Health Protection and Safety								



Kentucky Budget System (KBUD) – 2017 Budget Execution Manual

The query has a drill down feature, so a user can click on an amount in the query and a pop up screen will provide the budget form detail for that amount.

The query also has a zoom feature, so a user can choose a budget line in the drill down pop up screen and enable the <Zoom> button. When the user clicks on the <Zoom> button the Zoom pop up screen will appear and provide the Form request code, stage, amount, user and time stamp.

	Allotment Qtr 1 FY 16-17	Allotment Qtr 2 FY 16-17	Allotment Qtr 3 FY 16-17	Allotment Qtr 4 FY 16-17	Unallotted FY 16-17	Allotment Total FY 16-17	Object Class A	ppropriation mount Y 16-17
Summary 728S: Public Health								
Quarter	4,031,10	<u>3,366,000</u>	<u>0 3,059,900</u>	2,926,800		<u>13,383,800</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>
Appropriation		0	0 (<u>)</u> <u>0</u>		2 0	<u>0</u>	13,383,800
728S: Public Health								
Appropriation		0	<u>0</u>	<u>) 0</u>	<u>(</u>	<u>)</u>	<u>0</u>	13,383,800
7282: HANDS								
Quarter	2,700,00	2,250,000	<u>0 2,070,000</u>	<u>1,980,000</u>	<u>(</u>	9,000,000	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>
7283: Reach Out and Read								
7284: Healthy Start								
Quarter	200 00	0 050.00	0 000 000	220.000		1 000 000	<u>^</u>	
7285: Smoking Cessation								*
Quarter 7286: Immunization 7287: Folic Acid Quarter 7288: Early Childhood Me	View as CSV	Sort						
Quarter 7289: Early Childhood Or							Items 1-2	2 of 2 🗗
Quarter 728A: General Health Sur		udget AA bject Obj	Restricte ject Fund	ed ABR Gra	nt Budget Period	Off Budget Fund	Status Period	Data
728B: Women's Health	0 QI	UARTER X01	.1 0	0 0	2017	0	0 17Q1AVOR	G 2,700,000
728C: Prevention and Quine 1997 1997 1997 1997 1997 1997 1997 199								2,700,000
728J: Maternal and Child 728L: Laboratory Service Go to top of page								
728P: Public Health Protessor								

С	<u>GI</u> Adv	/anta	ge KE	BUDNP					×
	Displa	y 20	¥ Iter	ns <u>Viewa</u>	as CSV S	<u>o</u> rt		Items 1-2 of 2 🗗	٦
		Form	Stage	Amount	llser	Time Stamp	Peason Code	Reason Description	
						03/01/2016 10:27:28	Reason Code	Reason Description	
		5304	33			03/01/2016 10:27:28			. 1
	0 🔝			2,700,000					1
G	o to top o	of page							
	-								



How to Export the KBUD Query Results to Excel

KBUD has the capabilities to export the results of a query into Excel.

Step 1 - To export your data to Excel, click the <Export Tab> link.

Export Tab Send Link Row Label:	Column Label:		Goto							
	Allotment Qtr 1 FY 16-17	Allotment Qtr 2 FY 16-17	Allotment Qtr 3 FY 16-17	Allotment Qtr 4 FY 16-17	Unallotted FY 16-17	То	lotment ital ' 16-17	Object Class FY 16-17	Amo	ropriation ount 6-17
Summary 7285: Public Health										
Quarter	4,031,100	3,366,000	3,059,900	2,926,800		0	13,383,800		0	<u>(</u>
Appropriation	<u>0</u> (111) (111)	1	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>		0	<u>(</u>		<u>0</u>	13,383,80
728S: Public Health										
Appropriation	<u>0</u>	1	2 0	0		0	2		0	13,383,800
7282: HANDS										
Quarter	2,700,000	2,250,000	2,070,000	1,980,000		0	9,000,000		0	
7283: Reach Out and Read										
7284: Healthy Start										
Quarter	300,000	250,000	230,000	220,000		0	1,000,000		<u>0</u>	
7285: Smoking Cessation										
Quarter	541,100	451,000	414,900	396,800		0	1,803,800		0	0
7286: Immunization										
7287: Folic Acid										
Quarter	40,000	40,000	2 0	0		0	80,000		0	
7288: Early Childhood Mental Health										
Quarter	300,000	250,000	230,000	220,000		0	1,000,000		<u>0</u>	
7289: Early Childhood Oral Health										
Quarter	150,000	125,00	115,000	110,000		0	500,000		0	
728A: General Health Support										
728B: Women's Health										
728C: Prevention and Quality Improvement										
728D: Epidemiology and Health Planning										
728J: Maternal and Child Health										
728L: Laboratory Services										
728P: Public Health Protection and Safety										

Step 2 – The user will be prompted to either Save or Open the file. If the user opens the file, the Excel file will open and resemble the one below.

K 🚽 🍠 • 🖓 • 🕵 🛕 🛱 📼	_	fsqExp	ort.xlsx [Read-Or	nly] - Microsoft E	xcel	_	_		
File Home Insert Page Layout For	mulas Data	Review Vie	Developer	Add-Ins	Acrobat Team	n		۵	- F
Normal Page Page Break Lustom Full Views Screen Workbook Views	er 📝 Formula E Ilines 📝 Headings Show	Zoom 10	0% Zoom to Selection	New Arrange Window All	Freeze Panes + Unhio		e by Side nous Scrolling indow Position	Save Switch Workspace Windows	Macros Macros
A1 • Code: 17_AL_	ORIGINAL								
A	В	С	D	E	F	G	н	I	J.
Code: 17_AL_ORIGINAL	Name: FY 2017 Original Allotments Fund Name:								
2 Fund: TBCO 3 Program: 7285	Tobacco Fund Program Name: Public Health Budget Period								
4 Budget Period: 2017 5	Name: 2017 Budget Execution	Allotment	Allotment	Allotment		Allotment		Appropriation	
	Qtr 1	Qtr 2	Qtr 3	Qtr 4	Unallotted	Total	Object Class	Amount	
6 7 Summary 7285: Public Health	FY 16-17	FY 16-17	FY 16-17	FY 16-17	FY 16-17	FY 16-17	FY 16-17	FY 16-17	
8 Quarter	4,031,100	3,366,000	3,059,900	2,926,800	0	13,383,800		0 0	
9 Appropriation	0					13,505,000		0 13,383,800	
0 7285: Public Health									
1 Appropriation	0	0		0	0	0		0 13,383,800	
2 7282: HANDS									
3 Quarter	2,700,000	2,250,000	2,070,000	1,980,000	0	9,000,000		0 0)
4 7283: Reach Out and Read									
5 7284: Healthy Start									
6 Quarter	300,000	250,000	230,000	220,000	0	1,000,000		0 0	
17 7285: Smoking Cessation									
18 Quarter	541,100	451,000	414,900	396,800	0	1,803,800		0 (
19 7286: Immunization									
20 7287: Folic Acid				0				0 0	
Quarter 7288: Early Childhood Mental Health	40,000	40,000	c	0	0	80,000		0 0	
3 Quarter	300,000	250,000	230,000	220,000	0	1,000,000		0 0	
4 7289: Early Childhood Oral Health	500,000	250,000	250,000	220,000	U	1,000,000			
Quarter	150,000	125,000	115,000	110,000	0	500,000		0 0	
6 728A: General Health Support	150,000	125,000	110,000	110,000		500,000		-	
7 728B: Women's Health									
8 728C: Prevention and Quality Improvement									
8 728C: Prevention and Quality Improvement Image: Im					I 4				•



How to Email a KBUD Query Link to Another KBUD User

KBUD has the capabilities to email the results of a query to another KBUD user.

Step 1 – Click the <Send Link> button to open a Send Email page which allows the user to send a link of the specific query results to another user.

Export Tat Send Link Row Label:	Column Label:		Goto							
	Allotment Qtr 1 FY 16-17	Allotment Qtr 2 FY 16-17	Allotment Qtr 3 FY 16-17		Unallotted FY 16-17	To	lotment tal 16-17	Object Class FY 16-17	Appr Amo FY 1	
Summary 728S: Public Health										
Quarter	4,031,100	3,366,000	3,059,900	2,926,800		0	13,383,800	2	0	0
Appropriation	<u>c</u>		<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>		0	<u>(</u>	1	<u>0</u>	13,383,800
7285: Public Health										
Appropriation	9	<u>0</u>	0	0		0	2	2	0	13,383,800
7282: HANDS										
Quarter	2,700,000	2,250,000	2,070,000	1,980,000		0	9,000,000	2	0	0
7283: Reach Out and Read										
7284: Healthy Start										
Quarter	300,000	250,000	230,000	220,000		0	1,000,000	1	0	0
7285: Smoking Cessation										
Quarter	541,100	451,000	414,900	396,800		0	1,803,800	1	0	0
7286: Immunization										
7287: Folic Acid										
Quarter	40,000	40,000	0	0		0	80,000	2	0	0
7288: Early Childhood Mental Health										
Quarter	300,000	250,000	230,000	220,000		0	1,000,000	1	0	0
7289: Early Childhood Oral Health										
Quarter	150,000	125,000	<u>115,000</u>	110,000		0	500,000	1	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>
728A: General Health Support										
728B: Women's Health										
728C: Prevention and Quality Improvement										
728D: Epidemiology and Health Planning										
728J: Maternal and Child Health										
728L: Laboratory Services										
728P: Public Health Protection and Safety										

Step 2 - Click the <User Name> link to open the User search window.

Send Email	
Send Cancel	
Email Information * <u>User Name:</u> * Full Name:	
*Subject:	
VRL: http://kbudnp.state.ky.us/train1/Controller?p	

• The easiest way to search for a specific user is through the Full Name search. Enter the users first name followed by an asterisk (*) or enter an asterisk followed by the user's last name and click the <Search> button.



Step 3 - Click the <Select> button to select the User desired. A Send Email page will appear.

User		I)
User ID:	Full Name: Phillip*	<u>S</u> earch
-		<u>C</u> ancel
Display 20 🗸 Items Sort		
User ID	Full Name	
Select Ø MGJ0011	Phillip Rosell	

Step 4 - The Subject field is required. Enter an appropriate Subject title. The Message field is optional. Click the <Send> button to email the link.

Send Cancel	
Expand All Colla	ipse All
[nation
[*] <u>User Name</u> :	4
* Full Name:	Phillip Rosell
* Subject:	728S TBCO Original Allotments ×
URL:	http://kbud310np.state.ky.us/train1/Controlle
	^
Message:	
	\sim

NOTE: When the user clicks on the link in the email, the KBUD Login page will appear. Once the user logs in, they will automatically be directed to the Query Results page.

🖂 🛃 ۲	🖂 🛃 🖤 🍈 🐟 🗇 🗢 728S TBCO Original Allotments - Message (HTML)												
File	Messag	e D	eveloper	r									~ ?
ignore		Raphy	Raphy	Eastward	💐 Meeting	Participation Provide the Horizon of the Horizon Provide the Horizon of the H	*	Move	🍅 Rules ▾ 🔊 OneNote	🗟 Mark Unre	e -	a ∰ Translate	Zoom
🍇 Junk 🔻	Delete	Reply	Reply All	Forward	🖳 More 🛪	👔 Team E-mail	Ŧ	*	🗈 Actions 🔹	🔻 Follow Up	· -		20011
Delet	te		P	Respond		Quick Steps	- Fa		Move	Tags	- Fai	Editing	Zoom
From: jenny.glass@ky.gov Sent: Thu 2/19/2015 2:37 PM To: Rosell, Phillip (OSBD) Cc: Subject: 728S TBCO Original Allotments													
2FFSQ													



How to Print a KBUD Query

There is not a print option within the query feature. However, the user can print the query by exporting the data to Excel and printing from Excel or by using the web browser print option. To use the web browser print option, right click on the query results window and select "Print" from the pop-up window. The printer dialog box will open. Choose the appropriate printer and select the <Print> button.

		Allotment Qtr 2	Allotment Qtr 3	Allotment Qtr 4	Unallotted	Allotme Total	Object Class	Amou	opriation Int
	FY 16-17	FY 16-17	FY 16-17	FY 16-17	FY 16-17	FY 16-1	Back	EV 14	j-17
Summary 728S: Public Health							Forward		
Quarter	4,031,100	<u>3,366,000</u>	<u>3,059,900</u>	2,926,800		<u>0</u> <u>1</u>		Ctrl+Shift+L	<u>0</u>
Appropriation	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>		<u>0</u>			<u>13,383,800</u>
7285: Public Health							Save background as		
Appropriation	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>		<u>0</u>	Set as background		13,383,800
7282: HANDS							Copy background		
Quarter	2,700,000	2,250,000	2,070,000	1,980,000		0	Select all		<u>0</u>
7283: Reach Out and Read							Paste		
7284: Healthy Start							E-mail with Windows Live		
Quarter	300,000	250,000	230,000	220,000		<u>0</u>	Translate with Bing		<u>0</u>
7285: Smoking Cessation							All Accelerators	•	
Quarter	541,100	451,000	414,900	396,800		<u>0</u>			<u>0</u>
7286: Immunization							Create shortcut		
7287: Folic Acid							Add to favorites		
Quarter	40,000	40,000	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>		0	View source		<u>C</u>
7288: Early Childhood Mental Health						_	Encoding	+	
Quarter	300,000	250,000	230,000	220,000		0			<u>0</u>
7289: Early Childhood Oral Health						L	Print		
Quarter	150,000	125,000	115,000	110,000		0	Refresh		<u>0</u>
728A: General Health Support							Reliesh		
728B: Women's Health							Append to existing PDF		
728C: Prevention and Quality Improvement							Convert to Adobe PDF		
728D: Epidemiology and Health Planning							Export to Microsoft Excel		
728J: Maternal and Child Health							Send to OneNote		
728L: Laboratory Services							Properties		
728P: Public Health Protection and Safety									



Section 6: Reports (EBI)

KBUD's reporting feature uses a web-based reporting tool (Enterprise Business Intelligence, a.k.a. EBI) to create standard reports for all state agencies. This section of the KBUD manual is designed to show users how to perform the basic report functions within EBI. The basic functions include accessing, running, and saving KBUD reports to the user's computer. This section is not intended to cover the full functionality available within EBI.

How to Access a Report

Step 1 - To access EBI from within the KBUD application, click the <Reports> link from the Navigation bar in the upper right hand corner of the Homepage.



Step 2 - Depending on the version of KBUD and EBI, the Reports link may take the user to the SAP BusinessObjects (EBI) login screen, or it may take the user directly into the Reports application's homepage. If the link takes the user to the login screen, the user will need to enter their KBUD User ID and EBI Password. *NOTE: The passwords for KBUD and EBI are independent from one another.*

User N	ame: MGJ0011		
Pass	word:	••••	
Authentic	ation: Enterprise		~



Once the user is logged in to the Reports application, the Reports homepage should appear. Note: Do not use the back button in your Web browser to navigate within any portion of BusinessObjects Enterprise; doing so may result in the user being logged out of the application.

 My Recently Viewed Documents 	* 0 unread messages in My Inbox	* My Applications
 	No unread messages	%
- Hy Recently Run Documents	See more	
No recently run documents	Alerting is not enabled	

Step 3 - Click the <Documents> tab. This will allow the user to view documents within the My Favorites folder and/or Inbox. Then click the <Folders> bar at the bottom left of the screen.



Step 4 - Expand the Public Folders to view the subfolders in the directory. Expand the subfolders until the KBUD> Budget Execution> 2017 folder is located. Click on the <2017>



folder, and the user can now access the standard KBUD reports for the 2017 Budget Execution on the right-hand side of the reports panel.

View • New • Organize • Send • More A My Documents	tions Details Title	Туре
Folders	Allotment Modification	Web Intelligence
Public Folders	Allotment Request by Fund	Web Intelligence
É. 💼 KBUD	Allotment Request by Fund (Specify Fund)	Web Intelligence
🗐 🔲 Agency Budget Execution	Allotment Request by Program	Web Intelligence
	Allotment Request by Program loaded to eMAR	RS Web Intelligence
2012	Appropriation Modification	Web Intelligence
	Budget Execution Forms by Program	Web Intelligence
2013	Original AP vs AL at Appropriation Unit	Web Intelligence
2014	OSBD Statewide - Allotment Modification	Web Intelligence
2015	OSBD Statewide - Appropriation Modification	Web Intelligence
💴 2016	Quarterly Revenue Revision Rpt	Web Intelligence
2017	Revised Allotments	Web Intelligence
The Agency Budget Preparation	Revised Allotments-Specified AA Object(s)	Web Intelligence
- Agency bouget Preparation	Revised AP vs AL at Appropriation Unit	Web Intelligence

How to Run a Report

Step 1 - Click the <Allotment Modification> report link or any other report link you desire to run.

	ctions + Details	1
My Documents Folders	Title *	Туре
	Allotment Modification	Web Intelligence
Public Folders	Allotment Request by Fund	Web Intelligence
É. 💼 KBUD	Allotment Request by Fund (Specify Fund)	Web Intelligence
🚊 🔲 Agency Budget Execution	Allotment Request by Program	Web Intelligence
2011	Allotment Request by Program loaded to eMARS	Web Intelligence
2012	Appropriation Modification	Web Intelligence
	Budget Execution Forms by Program	Web Intelligence
2013	Original AP vs AL at Appropriation Unit	Web Intelligence
2014	OSBD Statewide - Allotment Modification	Web Intelligence
2015	OSBD Statewide - Appropriation Modification	Web Intelligence
- 💴 2016	Quarterly Revenue Revision Rpt	Web Intelligence
2017	Revised Allotments	Web Intelligence
🗄 🔲 Agency Budget Preparation	Revised Allotments-Specified AA Object(s)	Web Intelligence
Agency budget Preparation	Revised AP vs AL at Appropriation Unit	Web Intelligence



Kentucky Budget System (KBUD) – 2017 Budget Execution Manual

Step 2 - The selected report will open in a separate tab. In the example below, the user entered the Budget Request Code "5418" as a parameter, and clicked the <Run> button to execute the Allotment Modification report.

2:1		Welcome: RVJ0040 App	plications - Preferences Help m	enu マ Log off
Home Documents Allotment Modification , P + B				
	9 🛃 • 🖂 -	Dnill 👻 🏹 Filter Bar 🏢 Freeze 👻 🕮 Outline		Reading - Design -
User Promp				
Enter Budget Request Code: 5418				
	Last Execution Date	Commonwealth of Kentucky Fiscal Year 2017 Allotment Modifie		Page 1 of 1
	10/28/15	Running Query		
	Allotment Allotment Name TOTAL	r s	Quarter 4 Total	Object Object Amount
		Last refresh time: 0h 0m 2s		
		Cancel		
	L	u.		
				4
	Report 1			
Report 1 +				H 4 Page 1 of 1 🕨 H 📄 📴 100% 🕶

Note: Users can find the Budget Request Code in KBUD by navigating to the Select Budget Request screen and choosing the 17_MODIFICATION form. The request codes are located next to the Name column.

CGI Advantage KBUDNP	Welcome, RVJ0040	Messages(0) [Home ዋ	¹ Help Preferences	Reports Edi	it Password Logou
Reference Data 🔻 Security 🔻	Utilities 🔻 Budget Tasks 🔻				
Advantage Performance Budgeting	- KBUDNP > Budget Tasks > Formu	ulate Budget Request > Se	elect Budget Request		
Select Budget Reque	st				
Layout Code: Layout Type: Fund: New Edit View Delete		<i>₽</i> S <u>o</u> rt	Stage:	Archive View:	False V Search ems 1-2 of 2 🗗
Request Code	Name		Stage	Fund	Program
5418	FY17 DPH General Fund Modifica	ation-1	1	GNRL	7285
1 5419	FY17 DPH Federal Fund Modifica	tion-1	1	FDRL	7285
Go to top of page					



NOTE: If the Budget Request Code is unknown, another method to use for locating the code would be to click the Advance button and use the Prompts selection list to locate it. If the user can locate the code in the selection list, click the right arrow to select the code, and then select the Ok button.

29	Welcome: RVJ0040 Applications - Preferences Help	n menu 🗙 🔰 Log off
Home Documents Allotment Modification .P + 12		
	 Track * J Drill * 7 Filter Bar Freeze * 6 Outline 	Reading - Design - (2)
User Prompt In ut +		
Advanced Run		
(2) Prompts		× Page 1 of 1
Available prompt variants	- I I X	
Prompts Summary	Enter Budget Request Code:	
* Enter Budget Requ	st Code: 54	
	Refresh Values 😵	
	Budget Request Code 🗸 Budget Request Name	Object Object Amount
	681 2015 LIHEAP FF API	
	 5419 FY17 DPH Federal F 	
	5418 FY17 DPH General F 5417 FY17 DPH General F	
	5416 Parks 2nd qtr mod 5399 123F - FY17 FF Allo	
	5398 123F - FY17 RF Allo	
	March 15, 2016 8:05:13 AM GMT-04:00	
	/// ·	
<	>	
* Required prompts		
	OK. Cancel	
		~
<		>
Report 1		
Report 1 -		H 🕂 Page 1 of 1 🕨 H 🗎 📰 100% 🗸 🍪

Once the user clicks the <Run> button and the report has finished running, it should appear like the one below.

SAP		Welcome: MGJ0011 Applications Verferences Help menu Log off								
Home Documents Allotment Modification	4 Q									
Web Intelligence 🔹 📄 🧀 🐑 🗿 🔹 🗿	i ∰ _i - ⊠ - ⊅ ભ @	🕂 🔹 🎼 Track 🔹 🐺 Drill 🔹 🏌	存 Filter Bar 👖	Freeze 🔹 🖷	Outline					Reading -
User Prompt Input 👻	«									
Enter Budget Request Code:										
5418										
= []				Co	mmonwealth	of Kentucky				Page 1 of 1
(2)		st Execution Date		Fiscal Ye	ar 2017 Allo	tment Modifie	cation			r ugo r or r
	La			Appro		S - Public He	alth			
		4/15/16			Request Co	ode: 5418				
	Allotme	nt Allotment Name	Fund	Quarter 1	Quarter 2	Quarter 3	Quarter 4	Total	Object	Object Amoun
	728A	General Health Support	0100	0	0	25,000	25,000	50,000		
	728A	General Health Support	0100	0	0	0	0	0 1	k	50,00
	728C	Prevention and Quality Improvement	0100	0	0	-25,000	-25,000	-50,000		
	728C	Prevention and Quality Improvement	0100	D	0	0	0	0 1	0	-50,00
	TOTAL			2.62		0		0		



How to Create and Print a PDF Document from the Report

Step 1 - After the report is finished running, click the Print icon on the report. *NOTE: This will allow the user to save the report as a PDF document on their computer, not send it to an actual printer.*

Es					Welcon	ne: RVJ0040 Ap	plications Preference	es Help menu 🔻	Log off	
Home Documents Allotment Modification	4 Ø									
Web Intelligence 🔻 🗋 🧭 📃 📲 🕈 🤻	i 🗐 📇 • 🖂 - 🔄	(°⊔ 🖓 🔹 🔣 Track 🔹	🖡 Drill 👻 🏹 Filte	r Bar 🗰 Freeze	 					Reading
User Prompt Input • «										
Advanced 🖓 Run										
Enter Budget Request Code:										
5418										
				6.	mmonusolth	ofKontuck				
(2)						n of Kentucky tment Modifi				Page 1 of 1
	Last I	Execution Date				S - Public He				
		3/15/16			Request Co					
	Allotment	Allotment Name	Fund	Quarter 1	Quarter 2	Quarter 3	Quarter 4	Total	Object	Object Amount
	728A	General Health Support	0100	0	0	25,000	25,000	50,000		0
	728A	General Health Support	0100	0	0	0	0	0 4		50,000
	728C	Prevention and Quality Improvement	0100	0	0	-25,000	-25,000	-50,000		0
	728C	Prevention and Quality Improvement	0100	0	0	0	0	0 4		-50,000
	TOTAL			0	0	0	0	0		0

Step 2 - Click the <Print> button to create a PDF document of the report.

rint Range	Page size
All Reports	A4
Current report All Current Page Pages Enter Page Range (Example: 1,3,5-11).	Margins Top: 0.79 ↓ 0.79 ↓ inches Left: Right: 0.42 ↓ inches Bottom: 0.79 ↓ inches
) Fit to: Auto 🗘 page(s	normal size s) wide Auto , page(s) tall
rientation	

Step 3 - Click the <Open> button if you prefer to open the PDF document or click the <Save> button if you prefer to save it to your computer.

Do you want to open or save Allotment_Modification.pdf (50.3 KB) from ebi41test.ky.gov? Open Save 🔻 Cancel 🗙

Step 4 – If you open the PDF document, it should open up in PDF software like Adobe Acrobat Reader. From the Acrobat Reader application, you can print a paper copy of the report from your network printer.



How to Export the Report to Excel

Step 1 - After the report is finished running, click the Export icon on the report.

1						Welcon	me: RVJ0040 App	lications Preference	es Help menu 🔻	Log off	
	e Documents Allotment Modification 🕫 🌸										
Wel	b Intelligence 🔹 📄 🔗 📃 🗉 📇 🔹 👫	<mark>∲ ≟ •</mark> ⊠ ∗ ∎) 🖓 🕈 🔣 Track 🔹 🐺 I	Drill 🕆 🌾 Filte	r Bar 📗 Freeze	✓ É Outline					Reading
	User Prompt Input - «										
	🗊 Advanced 🛛 🍣 Run										
	Enter Budget Request Code: 5418										
(?)		Last	Execution Date 3/15/16		Fiscal Y	ear 2017 Allo	h of Kentucky otment Modifie 3S - Public He ode: 5418	cation			Page 1 of 1
		Allotment	Allotment Name	Fund	Quarter 1	Quarter 2	Quarter 3	Quarter 4	Total	Object	Object Amount
		728A	General Health Support	0100	0	0	25,000	25,000	50,000		0
		728A	General Health Support	0100	0	0	0	0	0 4	-	50,000
		728C	Prevention and Quality Improvement	0100	0	0	-25,000	-25,000	-50,000		0
		728C	Prevention and Quality Improvement	0100	0	0	0	0	0 4		-50,000
		TOTAL			0	0	0	0	0		0

Step 2 - Click the <Export Current Report As> and either <Excel (.xls)> or <Excel (xlsx)>.

Web Intelligence *	• Design
Image: Control of the state of the stat	
Image: State Stat	
Set3 Excel (xds) CSV Archive Text Commonwealth of Kentucky Page 1 of 1 Last Execution Date Appropriation: 728S - Public Health	
CSV Archive Commonwealth of Kentucky Page 1 of 1 Text Fiscal Year 2017 Allotment Modification Last Execution Date Appropriation: 728S - Public Health	
Text Commonwealth of Kentucky Page 1 of 1 Fiscal Year 2017 Allotment Modification Last Execution Date Appropriation: 728S - Public Health	
Last Execution Date Appropriation: 728S - Public Health	
Appropriation. 7285 - Public Health	
3/15/16 Request Code: 5418	
Allotment Allotment Name Fund Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Total Object Object Amo	at
728A General Health Support 0100 0 0 25,000 50,000	0
728A General Health Support 0100 0 0 0 0 0 4 50,	00
Prevention and Quality 728C Improvement 0100 0 0 -25.000 -25.000 -50.000	0
Prevention and Quality	
728C Improvement 0100 0 0 0 0 4 -50, TOTAL 0 <td>0</td>	0
	0

Step 3 - Click the <Open> button if you prefer to open the Excel file or click the <Save> button if you prefer to save it to your computer.

Do you want to open or save Allotment_Modification.xlsx (5.36 KB) from ebi41test.ky.gov?	Open	Save	•	Cancel	×



How to Close a Report and Exit the Report Application

Select the small X on the report tab to close the report. If prompted, do not save the report results. Once the user is finished running reports, select the Log Off link to exit the Report application.





Section 7: eMARS

SAS-14 Account Maintenance Form (Chart of Accounts)

The SAS-14 Account Maintenance Form is used to establish, inactivate or change an Allotment, Function, and/or Fund Chart of Account element in KBUD and eMARS. The form is split into two distinct sections: FUNCTION and FUND.

- The Function section should only be completed when an agency needs to affect the function type (allotment) or function code. It can also be used to request a budget override and/or update the VFDF (Valid-Fund-Dept-Function) table in eMARS.
- The Fund section will be completed when an agency needs to affect an operating or capital fund. It can also be used to request a cash override on a fund or indicate a specific accounting template to post the interest income from an interest-bearing fund in eMARS. The latest version of the SAS-14 form and instructions can be found on the eMARS website at: <u>http://finance.ky.gov/services/statewideacct/Pages/eMARSForms.aspx</u>.

SAS-14 10/27.10N Establish		ommonwealth of Kentucky JNT MAINTENANCE FOR	Date: 4/9/2013
Inactivate Change	EPT:		
Control (AL) Control (AL) Co	(FUNCTION TYPE) In Type Function Type Name (AL) iment for allotment override:	To:]
Function Function Function		Function Name	
For Fund Types 13 Legal citation, if Legal citation, if Does this Fund Legal Aut	io0, 1400, 6300, 6310 and 635 any, authorizing the receipt of fund any, that restricts the spending from Accrue interest income? If yes, nority:	is into a special revenue fund: in the source of funds: state the legal authority for the accrual	of interest income.
S R	Agency Contact	Require Appropriation Unit Require Reporting Code Require Sub-Reporting Code	S R Require Dept Object Require Location Require Sub-Location
Fund Class Fund Fund Class #	Fund Type Fund Group	CAFR Fund Type Investment Pool #N/A #N/A	Template ID



Operating Accounts

REQUIRED ELEMENTS – Select one of the following:

- **Establish** For requesting a new Allotment, Function, Operating Fund (cash control)
- Inactivate For requesting to inactivate an existing Allotment, Function, Operating Fund (cash control)
- Change For requesting to change an account element (e.g. overrides, interest income posting). Any requests for changes must have a corresponding explanation in the Reason for Change box.
 FY Select the current fiscal year from the drop down list.

Dept – Select the department that this request applies to from the drop down list.

FUNCTION AREA:

- ALLOTMENT (FUNCTION TYPE) Complete this section when requesting to establish, inactivate or override an Allotment account.
 - Select the Function Group (AP) from the drop down list.
 - Enter the Function Type (AL) being established, inactivated, or changed.
 - Enter the name of the Allotment Account.
- Override Allotment If requesting an Allotment override, select this check box. The From/To dates must be completed as well as the justification for the override. The end date of an override cannot exceed the end of the current fiscal year.
- **FUNCTION** Complete this section when requesting to establish, inactivate, or change a Function.
 - Enter the Fund Code from which the function makes/will make expenditures. If a new fund is being
 requested on the same form enter an asterisk (*) in the fund field to indicate the fund will be the
 new fund established.
 - Select the Function Group (AP) from the drop down list that the Function rolls/will roll up to.
 - Enter the Function Type (AL) that the Function rolls/will roll up to.
 - Select the Fund Type for the Function from the drop down list.
 - Enter the Function code being requested.
 - Enter the Function Name.

If a new Function is being requested, the agency will enter the Function code and the Function Name; this will not be assigned by the Controller's Office or GOPM.

FUND AREA:

- **FUND** Complete this section when requesting to establish, inactivate or change an Operating Fund.
 - Select the Fund Type from the drop down list.
 - To inactivate or change an existing Fund, enter the Fund code.
 - To request a new Fund, <u>leave the Fund field blank</u>. All new fund codes are assigned by Statewide Accounting Services.
 - Enter the Fund Name.
 - Enter the code for the Function that makes/will make expenditures from this fund.
- For Restricted Funds Only If this is a Restricted Fund, select whether the restricted fund is on-budget or off-budget. If this is not a Restricted Fund, do not select either option. Skip to the next item.
- For Fund Types 1300, 1400, 6300, 6310 and 6350:
 - **Legal citation, if any, authorizing the receipt of funds into a special revenue fund:** Enter the state or federal statute, or other legal authority establishing the special revenue fund.
 - Legal citation, if any, that restricts the spending from the source of funds: If there are restrictions on the use of the funds, enter the state or federal statute, or other legal authority defining these restrictions.
- Fund accrues interest income If this fund accrues interest income, check this box. The legal authority for the accrual of interest income as well as the account information where the interest income should post must be completed. (e.g. KRS 94A.220, 101 KAR 3:10) Fund, Dept, Unit and Function is required except where the interest is posting to the new fund. In this case, leave the Fund blank and Statewide Accounting Services will enter this information. All remaining fields on these two lines are discretionary.



Kentucky Budget System (KBUD) – 2017 Budget Execution Manual

- Override Cash If requesting a cash override on a fund, check this box. Justification and the From/To
 dates for the override must be completed. The end date of a cash override cannot exceed the end of the
 current fiscal year.
- Spending and Revenue Departments can require Sub-Function, Activity, Sub-Activity, Appropriation Unit, Reporting Code, Sub-Reporting Code, Department Object, Location and Sub-Location at the fund and department level for both spending and revenue. Check the appropriate boxes based on the departmental needs.

CONTACT:

A signature or a typed name is sufficient on the Agency Contact line. This needs to be the name of the person(s) to whom a new fund code will be sent or to whom questions may be referred.



This is an example of a SAS-14 to establish a new fund and function.

ľ	SAS-14 10/12 ACTION Establis	h			ommonwealth o		RM	Date: 4/9/	2013
[Change	te	Reason for FUND AND F		AMPLE				
JNCTION	Function Group (AP)	ENT (FUN Function Type (AL) de Allotment ification for allo	Function Typ	e Name (AL)]	To:			
EUNC.	FUNCTIO	DN Function	Function						
	Fund •	Group (AP) 520D	Type (AL) 520t	Function DFA0	Function Name Forensic Investig	ations			
╞╧	EUND								
	FUND								
	Fund Type	Fund	Fund Name						Function
	1300	l ted Funds On		stigations Fur	nd	O Off Budget			DFA0
	KRS 99	ation, if any, the	at restricts the	opending from	the source of func	.			
			e Interest Incc	me? If yes, s	tate the legal author	ority for the accru	al of interest income.		
	L	is Fund Accrue				prity for the accru	al of interest income.		
	L	is Fund Accrue egal Authority:				ority for the accru Activity	ial of interest income. Sub-Activity	Program	
FUND	Enter the acc	is Fund Accrue egal Authority: ount information	where the inte	erest income s	hould post		Sub-Activity	Dept Revenue	
FUND	Enter the according to the second sec	egal Authority: ount information Dept Location	where the inte Unit Task From:	Function Sub-Task	hould post Sub-Function	Activity	Sub-Activity	Dept Revenue	
FUND	L Enter the acco Fund Program Period Provide justifier Provide justifier	is Fund Accrude egal Authority: ount information Dept Location de Cash cation for cash of	where the inte Unit Task From: override: ts Elements	Function Sub-Task	hould post Sub-Function	Activity Reporting Code To: ue (R): priation Unit ting Code	Sub-Activity Sub-Reporting Code Sub-Reporting Code Sub-Reporting Code	Dept Revenue	
FUND	Enter the acco Fund Program Period Override Provide justifie	is Fund Accrudegal Authority: ount information Dept Location de Cash cation for cash of art of Accourt Require Sub- Require Sub-	Task From: Toyerride:	Function Sub-Task	hould post Sub-Function Task-Order mg (S) or Revenu Require Appro Require Repor	Activity Reporting Code To: ue (R): priation Unit ting Code	Sub-Activity Sub-Reporting Code Sub-Reporting Code Sub-Reporting Code	Dept Revenue Source	
FUND	Enter the acco Fund Program Period Override Provide justifie	is Fund Accrudegal Authority: ount information Dept Location de Cash cation for cash of art of Account Require Sub- Require Sub- Agency Con	Task From: Toyerride:	Function Sub-Task	hould post Sub-Function Task-Order mg (S) or Revenu Require Appro Require Repor	Activity Reporting Code To: To: priation Unit ting Code eporting Code	Sub-Activity Sub-Reporting Code Sub-Reporting Code Sub-Reporting Code	Dept Revenue Source	

Completed SAS-14's should be emailed to the GOPM Policy and Budget Analyst assigned to your agency. Once approved, it will be submitted to Statewide Accounting Services for processing. If requesting a new "Fund", Statewide Accounting Services will provide the Fund code that has been assigned to the new fund, and the policy and budget analyst will provide this information to the agency who made the request.



eMARS Function Group, Function Type, and Function

The KBUD appropriation and allotment program codes are the same codes used in eMARS for the Function Group (Appropriation Code) and Function Type (Allotment Code).

Function Group Search

Here are the steps to view the eMARS Function Group table:

Step 1 - From the Home page in eMARS, select Page Search.

Step 2 - In the Description field, enter "FUNCTION*".

Step 3 - Select Function Group from the list.

eMARS Production	Page Search
□ Search	Category : 🗸
Page Search	Page Type :
	Description : FUNCTION* Page Code : *
infoAdvantage	Browse Clear
History	
Favorites	Description Page Code Function Category FNCAT
Administration	Function Category FNCAT Function Class FNCLS
	Function Group FNGRP
	Function Type FNTYP
	Function FUNC
	First Prev Next Last



Step 4 - The Function Group table will open and allow you to view or search for a particular Appropriation (Function Group) code.

eMARS Production Function Gro	oup			
⊞ Message Center				
Search Function	Group Name	Active	Effective From	Effective To
Page Search V 005A	General Assembly	Yes		
Document Catalog 010A	Legislative Research Commissio	on Yes		
infoAdvantage 020C	Judicial Form Retirement System	n Yes		
History	Common wealth Attorneys	Yes		
Favorites First Prev Ne	County Attorneys	Yes		
*Function (Name : General Assembly Eff Name : Gen Assembly t Code : Assembly	tive From fective To Active Budgeting escription	: : V : V	

Step 5 - Click on the Search link and the Search box will open. From the search box, the user can search either by the Function Group (Appropriation Unit) code or by the name. The user can use wildcard (*) searches as well. Enter ***Parks*** in the Name field and click Ok.

eMARS Production	Function Group
Search	Function Group Name Active Effective From Effective To
Page Search	Ø Search - Windows Internet Exp < ▷
Document Catalog	about:blank
infoAdvantage	
History	Function Group :
Favorites	Name :
Administration	Ok Clear Cancel
	Sinternet Protected Mode: On 🕢 🗣 🔍 100% 🔻
	*Name : General Assembly Effective To :
	*Short Name : Gen Assembly Active : 🔽
	Contact Code : 🛃 Budgeting : 🔽
	Description :
	•
	{



The Function Group for the Department of Parks is displayed below as a result of the wildcard search.

eMARS Production	Function Group
Message Center	
□ Search	Function Group Name Active Effective From Effective To
Page Search	V 670K Parks Yes
Document Catalog	First Prev Next Last
infoAdvantage	Save Undo Delete Insert Copy Paste Search
History	*Function Group : 670K Effective From :
Favorites	*Name : Parks Effective To :
Administration	*Short Name : Parks Active : 🔽
	Contact Code : Budgeting : 🔽
	Description :



Function Type Search

Here are the steps to view the Function Type table:

- **Step 1 -** From the Home page in eMARS, select Page Search.
- Step 2 In the Description field, enter "FUNCTION*".
- Step 3 Select Function Type from the list.

eMARS Production	Page Search	
□ Search	Category :	
Page Search	Page Type :	
	Description : FUNCT	10N*
infoAdvantage	Page Code : *	
History History	browse clear	
	Description	Page Code
	✓ Function Category	FNCAT
Administration	Function Class	FNCLS
	Function Group	FNGRP
	Function Type	FNTYP
	Function	FUNC
	First Prev Next Last	



Step 4 - The Function Type table will open and allow you to view or search for a particular allotment (Function Type) code.

eMARS Production	Function Type					
Search	Fiscal Year	Function Type	Name	Active	Effective From	Effective To
Page Search		005B	General Assembly Regular Sessions	Yes		
Document Catalog	2007	005C	G.AKy Legislative Ethics Commissio	1 Yes		
infoAdvantage	2007	005D	G.AKy Long Term Policy Research	Yes		
History	2007	010B	Legislative Research Commission	Yes		
Favorites	2007 First Prev Next I	010C ast	LRC-Administration	Yes		
Administration	*Fiscal Yea *Function Typ *Nam	e: 005B e: General Asser e: GA Reg Sessi	Effective From : Effective To : mbly Regula Active :			•

Step 5 - Select the Search link and the Search box will open. From the search box, the user can search either by the Fiscal Year, Function Type (Allotment) code or by the name. The user can use wildcard (*) searches as well. Enter **2015** in the Fiscal Year field and **670*** in the Function Type field and click Ok.

Welcome, Rachelle Wilkins	Procurement Accounts Payable Accounts Receivable Budget Cost Accounting
eMARS Production	Function Type
Search	Fiscal Year Function Type Name Active Effective From Effective To
Page Search	Search - Windows Internet Expl
	es es
infoAdvantage	es
History	Fiscal Year : A
	Function Type :
Administration	Name: Name:
	Ok Clear Cancel
	🚱 Internet Protected Mode: On 🍕 🔻 🕄 100% 👻
	Internet Protected Mode: On Image: Control in the second sec
	*Short Name : GA Reg Sessions Budgeting : 🗸
	Contact Code : Description :
	Ψ.



A list of all the Function Types (Allotments) that begin with 670 in fiscal year 2015 are displayed.

Fiscal Year ✓ 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015	Eunction Type 670A 670B 670C	Name General Administration and Support Resort Parks	Yes	Effective From	Effective To
 ✓ 2015 2015 2015 	670A 670B	General Administration and Support	Yes	Effective From	Effective To
2015 2015	670B				
2015		Resort Parks			
	6700		Yes		
2015	0100	Recreation Parks and Historic Sites	Yes		
2015	670D	Cafeterias	Yes		
2015	670E	Parks - Debt Service	Yes		
*Fiscal Yea *Function Typ *Nam *Short Nam	r: 2015 e: 670A e: General Admin e: Gen Adm & Su	Effective From : Effective To : istration an Active : pp Budgeting :			
	Save Undo Delet *Fiscal Yea *Function Typ *Nam *Short Nam	*Fiscal Year : 2015 *Function Type : 670A *Name : General Admin	Save Undo Delete Insert Copy Paste Search *Fiscal Year : 2015 Function Type : 670A *Name : General Administration an Active : *Short Name : Gen Adm & Supp Budgeting :	Save Undo Delete Insert Copy Paste Search *Fiscal Year: 2015 Function Type: 670A *Name: General Administration an *Short Name: Gen Adm & Supp Budgeting:	Save Undo Delete Insert Copy Paste Search *Fiscal Year : 2015 Function Type : 670A *Name : General Administration an Active : *Name : Gen Adm & Supp Budgeting :

Step 6 - Select the record for Resort Parks (670B) to view the table information.

eMARS Production	Function Type							
Search			1					
Page Search	Fiscal Year	Function Type		Name	Active	Effective From	Effective To	
Document Catalog	2015	2015 670A		dministration and Sup	port Yes	Yes		
1000 1100 11	✓ 2015	670B	Resort Par	rks	Yes			
infoAdvantage	2015	670C	70C Recreation Parks and Historic Sites		ites Yes	Yes		
History	2015	670D	Cafeterias		Yes			
Favorites	2015	670E	Parks - De	ebt Service	Yes			
	First Prev Next L	the state of the s						
Administration			ste Sear	ch				
Administration	Save Undo Delet *Fiscal Yea	te Insert Copy Pa	ste <u>Sear</u>	ch Effective From :				
Administration	Save Undo Delet	te Insert Copy Pa Ir: 2015		Thursday as				
Administration	Save Undo Delet *Fiscal Yea *Function Typ	te Insert Copy Pa Ir: 2015		Effective From :				
Administration	Save Undo Delet *Fiscal Yea *Function Typ *Nam	e Insert Copy Pa 11 : 2015 e : 670B		Effective From : Effective To :				
Administration	Save Undo Delet *Fiscal Yea *Function Typ *Nam	e Insert Copy Pa r: 2015 e: 6708 e: Resort Parks e: Resort Parks		Effective From : Effective To : Active :			~	



Function Search

The Function Group (Appropriation) and Function Type (Allotment) are associated to the Function code on the Function table.

Here are the steps to view the Function table:

- **Step 1 -** From the Home page in eMARS, select Page Search.
- Step 2 In the Description field, enter "FUNCTION*".
- Step 3 Select Function from the list.

eMARS Production	Page Search					
□ Search	Category : 👻					
Page Search	Page Type :					
	Description : FUNCTION*					
infoAdvantage	Browse Clear					
History						
	Description Page Code Function Category FNCAT					
Administration	Function Class FNCLS					
	Function Group FNGRP					
	Function Type FNTYP					
	Function FUNC					
	First Prev Next Last					



Step 4 – The Function table will open and allow you to view or search for a particular Function code and its associated Appropriation (Function Group) and Allotment (Function Type) codes. The Appropriation (Function Group) and Allotment (Function Type) codes are displayed in the Rollups section.

eMARS Production	Function							
Message Center								
E Search		1	1					
Page Search	Fiscal Year	Department	Function	Nam	<u>ne</u>	Active	Effective From	Effective To
Document Catalog	2015		CA00	General Admin & S	upport	Yes		
infoAdvantage	√ 2015	670	CB00	Resort Parks		Yes		
	2015		CC00	Recreational Parks	& Historical Sites	0.000.074		
History	2015	670	CD00	Cafeterias		Yes		
	2015		CE00	Parks - Debt Servic	e	Yes		
Administration	First Prev Next	Last						
	*Fiscal Year *Department *Function *Name *Short Name Contact Code ♥ Rollups Function Cate Function G	: 670 2 : CB00 : Resort Parks : CB00 :		arch				



Kentucky Budget System (KBUD) – 2017 Budget Execution Manual

Step 5 - Select the Search link and the Search box will open. From the search box, the user can search either by the Fiscal Year, Department, Function code or by the name. The user can use wildcard (*) searches as well. Let's look for the Function codes in Department 670. Enter **2015** in the Fiscal Year field and **670** in the Department field and click Ok.

Welcome, Rachelle Wilkins	Procurer	nent Accounts F	Payable Accounts Receivable	Budget Cost Accounting
eMARS Production	Function			
Message Center				
Search	Fiscal Year Department Function Name	Active	Effective From Effective To	
Page Search	Search - Windows Internet Ex < >	Yes		
	about:blank	Yes		
infoAdvantage		mission Yes		
History	Fiscal Year :	earch Center Yes Yes		
Favorites	Department :	Tes		
Administration	- Function :			
	Ok Clear Cancel			
	🚱 Internet Protected Mode: On 🛛 🖓 🔻 🔍 100% 👻			
	*Department : 005			
	*Function : AAA0 Active : 🔽			
	*Name : General Assembly Budgeting : 🔽			
	*Short Name : AAA0 Description :		^	
	Contact Code :		.	
	•			
	▶ Rollups			
	Extended Description			
	Тор			


A list of all the Function codes in Fiscal Year 2015 for Department 670 is shown. In the Rollups section, the user can view which Function Type (Allotment) and Function Group (Appropriation) the Function code rolls up to.

eMARS Production	Function						
E Search							
Page Search		Department		Name	0.0000000000	Effective From	Effective To
Document Catalog	2015		CA00	General Admin & Support	Yes		
infoAdvantage	✓ 2015		CB00	Resort Parks	Yes		
History	2015		CC00 CD00	Recreational Parks & Historical Sites Cafeterias	Yes		
	2015		CE00	Parks - Debt Service	Yes		
Favorites	First Prev Next L		CLUU	Paiks - Debi Service	165		
Administration				arch 🗸 🖗			
	*Fiscal Year : *Department : *Function : *Name : *Short Name : Contact Code : ▼ Rollups Function Cl Function Cl Function T Function Gr	670 2000 CB00 Resort Parks CB00 2000 asss: 2000 as					



Budget Inquiries

Four inquiry pages are available in eMARS to break down the budget balances and view the individual transactions that total up to the balances:

- Appropriation (BQ3LV1)
- Allotment Program (BQ3LV2)
- Allotment (link on the Allotment Program BQ3LV2 page)
- Object Allotments (BQ3LV3)

These inquiry pages can be reached through the Budget workspace from the Home page in eMARS.

The **Appropriation Inquiry Page** provides information for the Appropriation balances. The key fields are defined below:

Budget Actuals

- Accrued Expenses = expenditures where the payment has been authorized but payment has not been submitted to the vendor. (The payment request document has been completed but the check/EFT has not been generated.)
- Cash Expenses = expenditures where the payment has been authorized and submitted to the vendor. (The payment request document has been completed and the check/EFT has been generated.)
- Actual Expenses = Accrued Expenses + Cash Expenses
- Unobligated = Current Budget Encumbered Accrued Expenses Cash Expenses
- Unexpended Accrued = Current Budget Accrued Expenses Cash Expenses

Budgeted Amounts

- Adopted = Appropriations included in the Appropriations Bills and any Special Legislation
- Amendments = any changes that occur after the enactment of the Appropriations Bills
- Current Budget = Adopted + Amendments
- Total Current LVL2 = sum of Allotments
- Total Adopted LVL2 = sum of Allotment amounts as enacted during the Allotment Request process



Appropriation (BQ3LV1) Inquiry Page

Budget	Appropria	1000								
Save										M
Restart										
Save All	BFY	CAFR Fund Type	11.00		tion Group	Current Budget		Actual Expenses	Unobligated	
Close	2015	FDRL	53	728S		\$199,916,700.00	\$801,760.61	\$112,784,063.75	\$86,330,875.64	
Operating Budgets	✓ 2015	GNRL	53	7285		\$68,820,000.00	\$458,739.74	\$37,314,258.92		
Inquiries	2015	RSTD	53	728S		\$97,016,400.00	\$2,947,287.13	\$40,840,180.74	\$53,228,932.13	
 Appropriation Inquiry (BQ3LV1) 	2015 First Prev	TBCO Next Last	53	728S		\$23,015, <mark>4</mark> 57.59	\$3,591.11	\$7,869,926.59	\$15,141,939.89	
Allotment Inquiry (BQ3LV2)		dget Actuals								
Object Allotment Inquiry (BQ3LV3)	A CONTRACTOR OF	e Reservations : s			0	Uncommitted : Unobligated :	\$30,977,800.07 \$31,047,001.34			
Appropriation Summary (ESUM3L1)		Encumbered : S	158,739.74		Q UI	nexpended Cash :	\$31,530,544.51			
Allotment Summary (ESUM3L2)		rued Expenses : s: Cash Expenses : s:		.49	Q Unex	pended Accrued :	\$31,505,741.08			
Object Allotment Summary (ESUM3L3)	<u>A</u>	ctual Expenses : S	37,314,258	.92						
Cash Balances (CBALSQ)		Idgeted Amounts	00	2	Budget Re	Serve : co oo				
Capital Budgets		ocated: \$0,000		Budget Reserve : \$0.00 Transfer Out : \$0.00		Q				
Management Budgets		ments: \$0.00		2		sfer In : \$0.00	a la			
	a series and the series of the	rward : \$0.00		2		udget: \$68,820,00	~			
	10 A	rsions: \$0.00		$\hat{\boldsymbol{\lambda}}$		udget: \$68,820,00				
		\$0.00		~		LVL2: \$68,820,00				
						LVL2: \$68,820,00				
	► Ge	eneral Information								
	<u>Top</u> d * <u>Modifi</u>	ed Budget Line Contri ppriation Summary	ols 🖻 <u>Ne</u>	ext Leve	el					



The **Allotment Program Inquiry Page** provides information for allotment balances. The key fields are defined below:

Budget Actuals

- Accrued Expenses = expenditures where the payment has been authorized but payment has not been submitted to the vendor. (The payment request document has been completed but the check/EFT has not been generated.)
- Cash Expenses = expenditures where the payment has been authorized and submitted to the vendor. (The payment request document has been completed and the check/EFT has been generated.)
- Actual Expenses = Accrued Expenses + Cash Expenses
- Unobligated = Current Budget Encumbered Accrued Expenses Cash Expenses
- YTD Unexpended Accrued = YTD Allotments Accrued Expenses Cash Expenses
- Unexpended Accrued = Current Budget Accrued Expenses Cash Expenses

Budgeted Amounts

- Adopted = Appropriations included in the Appropriations Bills and any Special Legislation Appropriations
- Amendments = any changes that occur after the enactment of the Appropriations Bills
- Current Budget = Adopted + Amendments
- Total Current LVL3 = sum of the Object Type amounts
- Total Adopted LVL3 = sum of the Object Type amounts as enacted during the Allotment Request process
- Total Allotted = sum of the quarterly Allotments
- YTD Allotments = sum of the quarterly Allotments to date
- Allotment Program (BQ3LV2) Inquiry Page



Allotment (BQ3LV2) Inquiry Page





The **Object Inquiry Page** provides information for the Object Type balances. These balances are by Object Type only.

Budget Actuals

- Accrued Expenses = expenditures where the payment has been authorized but payment has not been submitted to the vendor. (The payment request document has been completed but the check/EFT has not been generated.)
- Cash Expenses = expenditures where the payment has been authorized and submitted to the vendor. (The payment request document has been completed and the check/EFT has been generated.)
- Actual Expenses = Accrued Expenses + Cash Expenses
- Unobligated = Current Budget Encumbered Accrued Expenses Cash Expenses
- Unexpended Accrued = Current Budget Accrued Expenses Cash Expenses

Budgeted Amounts

- Adopted = Appropriations included in the Appropriations Bills and any Special Legislation Appropriations
- Amendments = any changes that occur after the enactment of the Appropriations Bills
- Current Budget = Adopted + Amendments

Budget	Object										
Save											<u>N</u>
Restart									1		
Save All	BFY	CAFR Fund Type	Cabinet	Functio Group		Fund Type	Object Type	Current Budget	Encumbered	Actual Expenses	Unobligated
Close	√ 2015	GNRL	53	728S	728A	0100	1	\$6,595,100.00	\$0.00	\$2,975,821.45	\$3,619,278.55
Operating Budgets	2015	GNRL	53	7285	728A	0100	3	\$206,300.00	\$17,776.99	(\$94,820.58)	\$283,343.59
Inquiries	2015	GNRL	53	7285	728A	0100	4	\$19,750,900.00	\$0.00	\$10,355,458.58	\$9,395,441.42
Appropriation Inquiry	2015	GNRL	53	7285	728A	0100	5	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
(BQ3LV1)	2015	GNRL	53	7285	728A	0100	6	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Allotment Inquiry	2015	GNRL	53	7285	728A	0100	7	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
(BQ3LV2)	2015	GNRL	53	7285	728B	0100	1	\$222,300.00	\$0.00	\$87,695.42	\$134,604.58
✓ Object Allotment Inquiry (BQ3LV3)	2015	GNRL	53	7285	728B	0100	3	\$16,900.00	\$0.00	\$18,693.92	(\$1,793.92)
Appropriation Summary (ESUM3L1) Allotment Summary (ESUM3L2) Object Allotment Summary (ESUM3L3) Cash Balances	Purchas	udget Actua e Reservat re-Encumbe	ions : \$0.00)		Unobli	nitted : \$3, qated : \$3, Cash : \$3,	619,278.55			
(CBALSQ)	Acc	rued Exper					crued : \$3,				
Capital Budgets		Cash Exper				ended Ac	53,	019,270.55			
Management Budgets		ctual Exper			~						
	Ad Alla Amenda Carry Fo	lopted : \$6, poated : \$6, ments : \$0, prward : \$0, rsions : \$0,	595,100.00 00 00 00	999	<u>Budget Reserve</u> <u>Transfer Ou</u> <u>Transfer Ir</u> <u>Original Budge</u> <u>Current Budge</u>	t: \$0.00 1: \$0.00 t: \$6,595,		Q Q			

Object (BQ3LV3) Inquiry Page



Attachment 1: KBUD Setup and Preferences

KBUD Setup

Internet Browser Requirements

The following is a list of supported web browsers that are compatible with the current version of KBUD.

- Microsoft Internet Explorer 8.0 (for Windows XP)
- Microsoft Internet Explorer 9.0 (for Windows 7)
- Microsoft Internet Explorer 10.0 (for Windows 7)
- Microsoft Internet Explorer 11.0 (for Windows 7)
- Microsoft Internet Explorer 10.0 (for Windows 8 and 8.1; Desktop mode only)
- Microsoft Internet Explorer 11.0 (for Windows 8 and 8.1; Desktop mode only)
- Mozilla Firefox ESR 24
- Apple Safari on Apple iPad with iOS 6.1 and 7.1

To check the Microsoft Internet Explorer version, click the Tools button 2 and select About Internet Explorer.

× Q.▼ *You Search Images	Search Maps Play YouTube	n ∲ 🐠 😭 Facebo News Gmail Dri	ick ▼ 	File	, Ctrl+J
+You Search Images	Maps Play YouTube	News Gmail Dri	ive Calendar More	Zoom (100%) Safety	
				View downloads	Ctrl+1
				Manage add-ons F12 developer tools Go to pinned sites	
				Internet options	





To check the Mozilla Firefox version, click on Help and select About Mozilla Firefox.





Pop-Up Blocker

Pop-up blocker must be disabled in order for the web page to function properly. To disable the pop-up blocker in Internet Explorer, click the Tools button 🔯 and select Internet options. Select the Privacy tab and unselect Turn on Pop-up Blocker.

Internet Options
General Security Privacy Content Connections Programs Advanced
Settings
Select a setting for the Internet zone.
Medium
 Blocks third-party cookies that do not have a compact privacy policy Blocks third-party cookies that save information that can be used to contact you without your explicit consent Restricts first-party cookies that save information that can be used to contact you without your implicit consent
Sites Import Advanced Default
Location
Never allow websites to request your Clear Sites
Pop-up Blocker
Turn on Pop-up Blocker Settings
InPrivate
OK Cancel Apply

To disable the pop-up blocker in Mozilla Firefox, select Tools/Options/Content. Uncheck the Block pop-up windows box and select the <OK> button.

Options							×
Main Ta	abs	(Content	Applications	Privacy	Security	k Advanced	
 Block pop Load ima Enable 2 Enable 3 	ges au avaScri	tomatically				Exceptions Exceptions Adyanced]
Fonts & Color Default font:	-	s New Rom	an	Size:	16 💌	Advanced	
Languages Choose your	preferi	red languag	e for displaying	pages		Ch <u>o</u> ose	
				ок	Cancel	<u>H</u> elp)



Internet Explorer Security Setting to Enable Menu Display

KBUD uses windows to display menu options. In order to fully display the complete list of menu options within a window, users may need to change the security setting with Internet Explorer to allow script-initiated windows without size or position constraints. Not all users may have access to make these changes. If your agency does not allow changes to your internet options, you will need to contact your Desktop Support to request that these changes be made. The following instructions are written for Internet Explorer 11.

Open up Internet Explorer and click on Tools> Internet Options. Click on the Security tab> Local Intranet and then the Custom level button.



Scroll to the Miscellaneous section. Select the Enable button for the "Allow script-initiated windows without size or position constraints." Once you have changed this setting, select the <OK> button, and you will be returned to the Internet Options page. Select the <OK> button to close the Internet Options window.

Security Settings - Local Intranet Zone					
Settings Allow scripting of Microsoft web browser control Setting Setting					
Allow script-initiated windows without size or position constra Disable Enable					
Allow webpages to use restricted protocols for active conten Disable Enable Prompt Allow websites to open windows without address or status b. Disable Disable Disable Enable Minimit of the formation of the state of th					
*Takes effect after you restart your computer Reset custom settings Reset to: Medium-low (default) Reset					
OK Cancel					



Login

Open your web browser. In the URL field, enter the web address for KBUD: <u>http://kbud.ky.gov</u>. To add this URL to your favorites, go to Favorites/Add to Favorites.



This will take you to the KBUD login screen as shown below:





In the User Name field, enter your User ID which is your Personnel ID (eMARS ID), or for University users, enter your separately assigned ID (example: UK1). Tab to the Password field and enter your password. Select the <Login> button.

Password Criteria

Appropriate password security is very important. Having a password that is unique and not easily guessed is the best way to ensure the secrecy of your password. The following are the guidelines for KBUD passwords:

- Passwords will expire every 90 days
- Passwords must be at least 7 characters in length
- Passwords must contain an Upper Case Character, Lower Case Character, a Number and a Special character
- Passwords cannot be reused with a 24 month period
- Users will be given 3 grace logins to change the password before the User ID is revoked and the user will not be allowed to login
- If your User ID is locked you will need to contact the KBUD Administrators (KBUDAdministrator@ky.gov)

Change Password

Password Has Expired

When your password has expired, the following screen will be displayed. Enter your current password in the Password field. In the New Password field, a new password will need to be created using the criteria above. Repeat the new password in the Verify Password field and select the <Change Password> button. Do not select the <Cancel> button as this will lock you out of the system.

🟦 Login Warning: Currently logging in under a grace Login. This is your last grace login. Please change your password now.						
Change Password	I)					
Change Password Cancel Warning : If the cancel button is pressed, you will be logged out of the application and locked out of the system. Expand All Collapse All C Change Your Password						
Password: New Password: Verify Password:						
Go to top of page						

If your password is successfully changed, you will see the following message:





Change Password Before It Expires

Passwords will expire every 90 days. When your password is getting ready to expire you will receive the following message:



To change your password before it has expired, select the "Edit Password" link from the Navigation bar.



Enter your current password in the Password field. In the New Password field, a new password will need to be created using the password criteria above. Repeat the new password in the Verify Password field and select the <Save> button.

Forgotten Password or Password Reset

If you have forgotten your password or need your password reset, from the KBUD login screen select the "Forgot your password?" link. *NOTE: This self-reset will only work if the user has not exceeded the three grace logins. If the user does exceed them, the account is locked and can only be unlocked by the KBUD administrator.*





The KBUD login screen will take you to a password reset screen. You will need to enter your User ID.



The KBUD system will automatically generate a new password and send it to your email address that is stored within KBUD.

🖂 📘 🗇 🕄 👍 🛐 🖙 Performancebudgeting: Forgotten Password Generated Response - Message (Plain Text)								
File Message	Developer						∾ 😮	
Ignore 🗙 📃	🗼 🏹 🚔 🕮 Meeting	🐴 Move to: ?	-	🍅 Rules ▾ 🔊 OneNote	🗟 Mark Unread 📲 Categorize 🕶	A Find	\mathbb{Q}	
🗞 Junk 👻 Delete 🛛 Re	eply Reply Forward 🌉 More - All	👔 Team E-mail		Actions -	🚩 Follow Up 👻	Translate 🔓 Select 🔹	Zoom	
Delete	Respond	Quick Steps	Gi .	Move	Tags 🖓	Editing	Zoom	
From: kbudadministrator@ky.gov Sent: Fri 2/13/2015 11:02 AM To: Rosell, Phillip (OSBD) Cc:								
Subject: Performancebudgeting: Forgotten Password Generated Response The password for the userid associated with this email address has been changed using a password reset request at 2015-02-13 Image: Content of the content of								

If you are still having difficulty with your password or you do not receive the email resetting your password, contact the KBUD Administrators (KBUDAdministrator@ky.gov).



Preferences

The "Preferences" feature allows you to customize the KBUD application. "Preferences" can be accessed from the Navigation bar.

welcome, Robooto Messages(o) [home help references Reports Edit Password Edgout	Welcome, RVJ0040 Me	essages(0) [Home 면 Help	Preferences	Reports Edit Password Logout
---	---------------------	---------------------------	-------------	----------------------------------

The first tab, Styles, will allow you to change the appearance of KBUD (default and simple schemes).

Reference Data 🔻 Security 👻 Utilities 👻 Budget Tasks 👻
Advantage Performance Budgeting - Training > Budget Tasks > Refresh Cache Page > Styles
Styles Bookmarks Usability Settings
Save Cancel
Expand All Collapse All
┌ Themes 🕕
* Choose a Theme: Default
Help 🗓
Display Information Help:

The second tab, Bookmarks, will allow you to create easy access shortcuts to application pages within the KBUD application. You can use the Rank and Label functions to name the shortcut and to order them in a preferred order.



Styles Bookmarks Usability Settings	
Save Cancel	
Bookmarks Label: Bookmarks	
Delete Display 10 V Items	
	Rank Label
	- NO ITEMS TO DISPLAY -
i)	
*Rank:	
Label:	

The third tab, Usability Settings, allows you to set certain options within the application. Certain settings on this page have already been set by the KBUD Administrators for you.

- **Expert User** allows you to move from one data entry field to another data entry field by using the tab key. (This option has already been selected for you).
- **Auto Tab** will automatically tab to the next data entry field when the current data entry field is full. For example, if a data entry field will hold 9 characters and you enter "Halloween," as soon as you complete entering the word, the cursor will automatically move to the next data entry field without using the tab key.
- Expand Section will expand all sections on a screen when the screen is first displayed.
- **StartPage** will determine what the first screen will be when you login to the application. (This option has already been selected for you).



Kentucky Budget System (KBUD) – 2017 Budget Execution Manual

Styles Bookmarks Usability Settings	
Save Cancel	
Expand All Collapse All	
ExpertUser 🗓 ———————————————————————————————————	
Expert User Option: 🔽	
Return to Top	
Auto Tab 🗓 ———————————————————————————————————	
Enable Auto Tab: 🔲	
Return to Top	
Expand Section 🗓 ———————————————————————————————————	
Expand Section Option:	
Return to Top	
┌ ⊡ StartPage 🗓	
Start Page Name: Category Pages Reset Start Page	
Return to Top	
Go to top of page	